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Financial Highlights
MBERE

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET FORTHE YEAR HFRZRTEHEH#ESE 22 W A

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF

. Hong Kong & 56.41% . Hong Kong &7# 54.62%

Other regions in Asia Pacific 25 A £t i & 0.01% Other regions in Asia Pacific 32 A H fth i@ 0.11%
. Europe B 0.49% . Europe EUM 0.88%
. North and South America 33l & M 43.09% . North and South America b3 M & M 44.39%

REVENUE BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR FRRIEEZKE 22w A

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E-tF

. Manufacture and sale of medical devices products Manufacture and sale of medical devices products

B R ERERIBEM 42.11% B T S E R R B A R 43.24%

Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products

HERHEYBEAER 1.48% HERHEYBEAER 2.21%
. Provision of construction services in building construction, . Provision of construction services in building construction,

building maintenance and improvement works, project building maintenance and improvement works, project

management, renovation and decoration works management, renovation and decoration works

RE{ETEE BTRERRETR REPETEE BTRERRETR

HEERE  REREHTETEZEERSE 48.62% HEEE  REREH TR EZEERSE 47.59%
. Provision of money lending . Provision of money lending

REKE 7.79% REKE 6.96%

Investment in securities Investment in securities

BHERE 0% BHERE 0%

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2018



FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS

HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets forth certain financial information of
AMCO United Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

(collectively, the “Group”) as of the date for the years indicated:

Financial Highlights
MBRE

MBEREERERE

TREFIERERBROF ([RARF]) REN
BAR (G [ AEBDRIITFERRZET
FIFEE R :

OPERATING RESULTS (HK$'000) 2018 2017
REXEJE(THER) —E2-N\F —T—tF
Revenue from continuing operations REBERLLEER Z/A 112,279 87,932
Loss for the year FEEE (26,752) (147,930)
FINANCIAL POSITION (HK$'000) 2018 2017
MR (FHET) —E2-N\F —T—+F
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ANQ R A AE(H#ER 135,835 165,683
Total assets mEE 234,093 228,211
Net assets BEFE 135,835 165,683
Net assets value per share (HK cents) BREEFE (BI) 7.3 8.9
FINANCIAL STATISTICS 2018 2017
B g e at —E2-N\F —T—+F
Current ratio’ & b 2 3.3 3.4
Total debt to total assets ratio? BEG RS E R 0.4 0.3
Return on total assets (%)3 488 FE Bl 3R K (%)3 (11.4) (64.8)
Return on sales (%)* THE B E(%)* (23.8) (168.2)
Loss per share from continuing and REFBERDKRIEEEEG 2

discontinued operations (HK cents) TR EE ()

Basic and diluted BEARREE (1.4) (7.9)

Notes:

1. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities.

2. Total debt to total assets ratio is calculated by dividing the total

indebtedness by total assets.

3. Return on total assets is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by

total assets.

4. Return on sales is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by revenue

from continuing operations.
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s
=
al =+ °

3. REBEELMEDUFEEERAGEETE -
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Corporate Information

QNAEHR

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

ZHANG Hengxin (Chairman and Managing Director)
JIA Minghui

Independent Non-executive Directors

CHAN Tsz Keung
AU YEUNG Ming Yin Gordon
GUO Zhenhui

COMPANY SECRETARY

HUNG Tsz Ching

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

ZHANG Hengxin
HUNG Tsz Ching

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1104, Crawford House
70 Queen’s Road Central, Central

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11

Bermuda
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited
10/F., 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.amco-united.com
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Chairman’s Statement

EEHRE

The Year 2018 has marked another year of great challenge facing certain
level of uncertainty of the economy and the volatile financial market
in Hong Kong and globally. With the downturn impact encountered
lately largely stabilised, we focused our efforts to maintain and boost
our momentum of growth by facilitating business development of the
respective business segments which have successfully generated increase

in turnover and gross profits of the Group in the current year.

In 2018, the sales order from a major customer for the Group's business
segment in the manufacture and sale of medical devices products
(“Medical Devices Business”) has gradually resumed, and revenue
generated for the Medical Devices Business has increased over previous
year. Despite a lower margin in price yielded by the medical devices
product in the current year, segment profit of the Medical Devices
Business has increased under increased sales order and effective cost
control achieved. With the continual recovery of sales order, the Group is
persisting to deploy business strategies of streamlining and outsourcing
of business processes and implementing stringent cost control in order
to maintain its long-term sustainable competitive advantages in the
business segment. The Group’s business segment in the manufacture
and sale of plastic moulding products (“Plastic Moulding Business”)
has been downsized in recent years and revenue generated by this
business continued to decline in the current year due to end of product
life cycles of most of its products. Segment loss of the Plastic Moulding
Business has increased caused by the continual decline in sales order.
With effective product mix fine tuning and cost containment programs
implemented, the Group is of the view that it will continue the operation
of the Plastic Moulding Business as long as it still contributes sufficiently
to share appropriate portion of the administration and operation cost of

the Group.
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The Group’s business in the provision of construction services in building
construction, building maintenance and improvement works, project
management, renovation and decoration works (“Building Contract
Works Business”) has recently been experiencing a series of challenge
on both intensified market competition and surging costs. While the
Building Contract Works Business has successfully generated increase
in revenue in the current year, primarily contributed from a number of
significant contracts in the public sector awarded near the end of 2017
and early in 2018, profit margin of this business has been continuously
curtailed mainly due to decrease in awards of contracts in the private
sector which yielded higher margins in price, under more fierce market
competition of the building construction and maintenance industry
during the year. The continuous rise in subcontracting costs resulting
from increased labour costs also contributed to the low profit margin
which resulted in operating loss recorded for this business in the current
year. Despite the underperformed result and increasingly fierce market
competition of the building construction and maintenance industry, the
Group will continue to deploy efforts in tendering for projects which
yield higher margins in price, particularly in the private sector, and make
concerted efforts in controlling and managing contract and operating

costs, in order to foster improvement in results of this business.

The Group's business in the provision of money lending (“Money Lending
Business”) has generated stable income to the Group in 2018. Segment
revenue and segment profit of the Money Lending Business has both
increased in the current year. The Group has recorded a segment loss
for its business of investment in securities (“Securities Investment”) in
the current year, which has been significantly reduced over the previous
year. The Group will closely monitor and appraise the performance of
this business and cautiously assess the investment portfolio from time to

time.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

PROSPECTS

Building on a diversified business portfolio, the Group will continue
its steps to formulate, evaluate and modify business strategies of our
existing businesses in order to facilitate and further their business
development. To cope with the business development of the business
segments, the Group will seek to deploy effective and sufficient capital
and resources allocation in respect of the different business segments,
and actively reallocate its assets, funding and labour force in response to
the changing market and industry conditions and business performance.
The Group will perform constant and dynamic performance appraisals
and assessment to evaluate the ongoing business development. The
Group will also continue its efforts in maintaining liquidity by effective
working capital management and costs control, and leveraging operation
efficiency by adhering to its lean organisation structure, in light of any
difficulties which may be encountered under the uncertainties in the

economy and financial market.

Alongside with the continuing evolution of business strategies to
develop our existing business segments, the Group will seek to optimize
its business portfolio by adjusting it to adapt to the changing business
climate, trend and environment, as well as proactively exploring
and exploiting every potentially profitable business and investment
opportunity, with the ultimate goal to generate and maximize
shareholders’ value and return, and maintain the Group’s momentum to

grow and prosper sustainably.

Zhang Hengxin
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS

The total revenue of the Group increased HK$24.4 million or 27.8%,
from HK$87.9 million last year to HK$112.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. Such an increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in revenue from the Medical Devices Business and Building

Contract Works Business.

Gross profit of the Group was HK$23.6 million, representing an increase
of HK$3.2 million or 15.7% as compared to HK$20.4 million in 2017.
Gross profit margin decreased by 2.2 percentage points to 21.0%
(2017: 23.2%), primarily as a result of decrease in gross profit margin of
the Medical Devices Business and Building Contract Works Business in

current year.

During the year under review, the Group recorded other losses, net of
other income and other gains, of HK$9.7 million, as compared to that
of HK$128.2 million in the corresponding year of 2017. The significant
decrease in the losses was mainly attributable to the decrease in
unrealised fair value loss of held-for-trading investments arising from
the Securities Investment in current year and absence of the realised fair

value loss of the held-for-trading investments recorded in previous year.

The distribution costs declined by HK$0.1 million to HK$0.2 million
during the year under review (2017: HK$0.3 million), representing a
reduction of 33.3% over the corresponding year of 2017, under stringent
cost control in current year. The administrative expenses amounted to
HK$39.7 million, which remained relatively stable as compared to that of
HK$39.8 million for the corresponding year of 2017, primarily as a result
of the combined effect of the impairment losses recognised on goodwill
and financial assets and increase in staff costs and other general

administrative costs during current year, and absence of the share-based

payment expenses incurred for previous year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERE W R D

Finance costs amounted to HK$0.7 million (2017: HK$nil) for the year
under review, which represented interest on bonds issued during current

year.

As a result, the overall loss attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$26.7 million, which decreased significantly by HK$121.2 million as
compared to HK$147.9 million loss for the corresponding year of 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Medical Devices Business

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Medical Devices Business
recorded revenue of HK$47.3 million, which increased by 24.5% or
HK$9.3 million as compared to that of HK$38.0 million in the previous
year. This amount represented 42.1% of the Group's total revenue for
the year under review. In 2018, the economy of the United States of
America (“America”) has maintained steady growth, and the Medical
Devices Business has benefited from the continual recovery of sales
order from our key customer in America, causing revenue of the Medical

Devices Business to increase during the current year.

Segment profit of the Medical Devices Business amounted to HK$5.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing an increase
of HK$2.4 million or 82.8% as compared to that of HK$2.9 million in
the corresponding year of 2017. The increase in segment profit was
primarily as a result of increase in sales orders and effective cost control
achieved as indicated by the year-over-year decrease in distribution costs
and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue, partially offset
by lower margin in price yielded by the medical devices product in the
current year. With the continual recovery of sales order, the Group is
persisting to deploy business strategies of streamlining and outsourcing
of business processes, implementing stringent cost control and ensuring
effective utilization of resources in order to maintain its long-term

sustainable competitive advantages in the business segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Plastic Moulding Business

The revenue from the Plastic Moulding Business decreased by 10.5% or
HK$0.2 million to HK$1.7 million, as compared to HK$1.9 million in the
previous year, which accounted for 1.5% of the Group's total revenue
for the year under review. A majority of plastic moulding products
suffered from declining sales orders as relevant customers’ end products
have reached the end of their product life cycle, causing continuous
decline in revenue of the Plastic Moulding Business during the year
under review. In view of this, the Group has ceased the production of
the majority of those products which contributed a relatively low gross
profit margin, and has only been accepting small number of production
orders of mould fabrication and some products, which have a relatively

higher gross profit margin.

Despite persistent efforts in the improvement in profit margins of
sales orders and cost control in the reduction of distribution costs
and administrative expenses, the Group recorded segment loss of
HK$0.4 million for the year under review, representing an increase of
HK$0.1 million or 33.3% as compared to that of HK$0.3 million for the
corresponding year of 2017, primarily due to the continuous decline in
sale orders. As such, the Group has shifted assets and resources of this
segment to other more profitable business units, but will continue the
operation of the Plastic Moulding Business as long as it still contributes
sufficiently to share appropriate portion of the administration and

operation cost of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERE W R D

Building Contract Works Business

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue from the Building
Contract Works Business generated by ACE Engineering Limited (“ACE
Engineering”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, amounted to
HK$54.6 million, representing an increase of HK$12.7 million or 30.3%
as compared to HK$41.9 million for the corresponding year of 2017,
which contributed 48.6% of the Group’s total revenue for the year under
review. The increase in revenue was primarily due to the net effect of (i)
substantial completion of several significant private contracts during the
previous year; and (ii) several significant public contracts newly awarded
near the end of 2017 and early in 2018 were in full swing during the
current year. This business recorded a gross profit of HK$4.6 million
(2017: HK$4.9 million) and gross profit margin of 8.4% (2017: 11.7%).
The decrease in gross profit margin was primarily attributable to (i)
revenue growth in public sector which yielded lower margins in price;
(ii) decrease in awards of projects in the private sector which yielded
higher margins in price, under more fierce market competition of the
building construction and maintenance industry during the year; and
(iii) rise in subcontracting costs resulting from increased labour costs.
Segment loss of this business increased to HK$5.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018, as compared to that of HK$0.1 million for
the corresponding year of 2017, primarily as a result of the net effect of
(i) decrease in gross profit margin; (ii) increase in administrative expenses
mainly due to increase in staff costs; (iii) reduction in amortisation
charges of intangible asset acquired as part of the acquisition of the
business which was non-cash item and amounted to HK$0.04 million for
the year under review (2017: HK$0.24 million); and (iv) an impairment
loss on goodwill of HK$3.8 million (2017: HK$nil) recognised in the
current year mainly due to the performance of this business had not
matched the anticipation of the management owing to the continuous

curtailment of profit margin resulting in operating loss for the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2018, ACE Engineering had undertaken eight
building maintenance and/or renovation projects from the Hong Kong
Housing Society and the Hong Kong Housing Authority with the contract
sums ranging from approximately HK$0.6 million to HK$23.9 million
and the aggregate contract sum of approximately HK$75.1 million.
Hence, the aggregate contract sums from public sector amounted to
approximately HK$75.1 million and the aggregate estimated paid and
payable subcontracting fee of those eight existing construction projects
undertaken by ACE Engineering was approximately HK$69.9 million. As
at 31 December 2018, approximately HK$46.3 million of the aggregate
contract sums was still outstanding and those eight construction projects

were pending to be completed within next two years.

Despite increase in segment loss of the business during the year under
review and the increasingly fierce market competition of the building
construction and maintenance industry, the Group will continue to
deploy efforts in tendering for projects which yield higher margins in
price, particularly in the private sector, and make concerted efforts in
controlling and managing contract and operating costs, in order to

facilitate improvement in results of this business.

Money Lending Business

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded loan interest
income of HK$8.7 million from its Money Lending Business, representing
an increase of HK$2.6 million or 42.6% as compared to HK$6.1 million
for the previous year, which accounted for 7.8% of the Group's total
revenue for the year under review. Segment profit of the Money
Lending Business amounted to HK$7.4 million (2017: HK$5.8 million).
The outstanding principal and interest amount of loan receivables as at
31 December 2018 was HK$139.7 million (31 December 2017: HK$110.1
million). Loss allowance for expected credit loss of HK$3.3 million has
been made for loan receivables as at 31 December 2018 under the
expected loss model (31 December 2017: nil). The Group will continue
to develop this business by employing prudent credit control procedures
and strategies to hold a balance between the business growth and the

risk management.
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Securities Investment

During the year under review, the Group recorded no realised gain
or loss (2017: realised loss of HK$59.1 million) and unrealised loss of
HK$10.0 million (2017: HK$75.2 million) arising on change in fair value
of held-for-trading investments of listed equity securities in Hong Kong
for the year ended 31 December 2018. No dividend income was received
from the held-for-trading investments during the year under review
(2017: nil).
HK$10.0 million (2017: HK$134.4 million).

Segment loss of the Securities Investment amounted to

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held 8 listed equity securities in
Hong Kong with the fair value of HK$25.2 million. In light of the recent
volatile financial market in Hong Kong, the Group intends to diversify

its investment portfolio in order to reduce the relevant concentration

HHERE

REREFE AEBTEHFDEH RS HE
B(ZZ—+4F: & #3HE51859,100,000% 7T) &
BEE-_T-N\F+_A=+—HALFEEE
FTRABSFEEEREZ AR BELZSM
8% 15 78 % 37 §54810,000,00078 7T (=T — &
75,200,000/ 7C) - REEFE - W B FRHEEE
BB W BT AR 2 LISU\( —tFm) FBH
& & 5 EBE 18 410,000,000 T (Z T —+F:
134,400,000% 7T ) °

R-EBE-N\F+-_A=t+—8 A&£EBHFHZN
EEFB L HRAESZ AR BEAE25,200,00078

T-ENIHMEASRTESE AREHS T
EEZREEENRERBED RKRERR Wi
BYEEZEBIRE - AKERRREBERRE

and investment risks and will closely monitor the performance of this
business. The Group will keep adopting a prudent investment attitude
and develop its investment strategy with the aim to improve the capital
usage efficiency and generate additional investment returns on the idle

funds of the Group.

Details of the Group's top two held-for-trading investments, in terms of

fair value as at 31 December 2018, are as follows:

[]JJP

gl

B

)
REREREKERE 5ER
A

BEAMAER

AEERBEESTREIMIEDR-

HR-E-NFT A=+ —HZAAEBEMD
S ARBEZMARBEEEREZFHBOT:

% of Fair value % of total
shareholding gain/(loss) for Fair value assets of the
asat  the year ended as at Group as at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2018 2018 2018
BE-Z-N\F EAREER
+=ZA=+—H —E-N\§
HER=ZB-N\F tFEEZ R=Z2-N§¥ +ZH=+-H
+=ZA=+-H NREE +=A=t+-H ZEELE
Company Name/Stock Code DRAEE/ BRERE ZBREEAL Wi (FR) ZAREE R
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Securities listed in Hong Kong ERLEMHES
China e-Wallet Payment Group Limited FEE®XNEBARAQA
("China e-Wallet") (802) (Note (a)) (ThEEa]) ( 802) (M (a) 1.859% (10,047) 9,843 42%
WLS Holdings Limited (“WLS") EEZERERD
(8021) (Note (b)) (DEE]) (8021) (P FE(b)) 1.359% 1,757 9,372 4.0%
Others (Note (c)) H At (HI5E(0) (1,715) 6,003 2.6%
(10,005) 25,218 10.8%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Notes:

(a)

China e-Wallet is principally engaged in the provision of biometric and
radio frequency identification products and solution services, internet and
mobile application and related services. As disclosed in the interim report
of China e-Wallet for the six months ended 30 June 2018, it recorded
unaudited net loss attributable to its owners of HK$7.7 million for the
six months ended 30 June 2018. With regards to the future prospects
of China e-Wallet, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) noted
that China e-Wallet takes cognizance of its position in the current
economy and continues to be cautious but innovative in implementing
its business strategies. Its focus remains in the vast growing technology
sector while investing its resources in innovating potential hybrid

business solutions to suite the ever challenging economy.

WLS is principally engaged in the provision of scaffolding and fitting
out services and other services for construction and buildings work,
provision of gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment installation
and maintenance services, money lending business, securities brokerage
and margin financing, securities investment business and assets
management business. As disclosed in the third quarterly report of WLS
for the nine months ended 31 January 2019, it recorded unaudited
net loss attributable to its owners of HK$20.3 million for the nine
months ended 31 January 2019. With regards to the future prospects
of WLS, the Directors noted that WLS is prudently optimistic about its
prospects. WLS will continue to promote the use of the “Pik Lik” brand
scaffolding system to help improve overall efficiency while boosting the
revenue and market share of its scaffolding services division. WLS also
plans to continue expanding those business segments with higher profit
margins and growth potential, such as money lending and securities
brokerage operations, in order to generate better financial returns for its

shareholders.

None of these investments represented more than 5% of the total assets

of the Group as at 31 December 2018.
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Looking ahead, the Directors believe that the future performance of the
above investments held by the Group will be volatile and substantially
affected by overall economic environment, equity market conditions,
investor sentiment and the business performance and development of
the investee companies. Accordingly, the Group will continue to maintain
a diversified portfolio of investment of various industries to minimise
the possible financial risks. Also, the Directors will cautiously assess the

performance progress of the investment portfolio from time to time.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital structure

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's consolidated net assets was
HK$135.8 million, representing a decrease of HK$29.9 million as
compared to that of HK$165.7 million as at 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has 1,862,679,481 ordinary

shares of HK$0.01 each in issue.

Debt structure

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group's total borrowings
from financial institutions were zero. The Group's total cash and bank
balances amounted to HK$18.3 million as at 31 December 2018, which
decreased HK$8.0 million as compared to that of HK$26.3 million as at
31 December 2017.

Issue of bonds

On 12 October 2018, the Company issued unlisted bonds to an
independent third party with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$30,000,000. The bonds are unsecured and issued at the fixed interest
rate of 10% per annum and will mature on the date falling on the 36
months after the date of issue of the bonds (i.e. 12 October 2021). The
proceeds from the issue of the bonds are used for the principal activities

and general working capital of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's gearing ratio was 9.1% as at 31 December 2018, while that
it was not applicable as at 31 December 2017 because the Group had
a net cash balance at that date. The ratio was determined by net debt,
which was defined as total interest-bearing liabilities comprising bond

payables less cash and cash equivalents, over shareholders’ equity.

Working capital and liquidity

As at 31 December 2018, both of the Group’s current ratio and quick
ratio were 3.3 (31 December 2017: 3.4). Inventory turnover on sales
was 0 day (31 December 2017: 0 day). Receivable turnover was 44 days
(31 December 2017: 49 days).

Contingent liabilities and charges

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had not pledged any
assets to secure bank facilities and finance lease obligations. The Group

had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group's monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated in United States dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
Since Hong Kong dollars are pegged to United States dollars and the
exchange rate of Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars was relatively stable
during the year, the Group’s exposure to the potential foreign currency

risk was relatively limited.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's employees number was 42
(31 December 2017: 37). The Group’s employees are remunerated
largely based on their performance and experience, alongside with the
current industry practices. Remuneration packages of employees include
salaries, insurance, mandatory provident fund and share option scheme.
Other employee benefits include medical cover, housing allowance and

discretionary bonuses.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEAER[HN

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Hengxin, aged 35, joined the Company as an Executive
Director on 6 September 2016. He was appointed as the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (“Nomination Committee”) on 31 January
2017 and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company
(“Remuneration Committee”) on 1 January 2017. Mr. Zhang is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor
Degree in Human Resources Management from Huazhong Agricultural
University in 2006 and Master Degree of Arts in Industrial Relations and
Personnel Management from The University of Warwick, United Kingdom
in 2007. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years of experience in human resources

management in different industries.

Mr. JIA Minghui, aged 28, joined the Company as an Executive Director
on 30 September 2016. He obtained a Master Degree of Development
Economics from the School of Oriental and African Studies, University
of London, United Kingdom in 2013. Mr. Jia has extensive experience
in the international finance and project management. He had been
working in the financial conglomerate in the People’s Republic of China
and responsible for client's project management, projects merger and

acquisition activities.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Tsz Keung, aged 29, joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 11 October 2017. He was appointed as
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each
of the audit committee of the Company (”Audit Committee”) and
Nomination Committee on 11 October 2017. He obtained his Bachelor
of Arts in Economics from The University of Southern California in
the United States in 2011. Mr. Chan had worked as an analyst in the
loan administration department of corporate banking division of a
French investment bank. He had also worked in a United States listed
company and was a sales manager for the Asia Pacific region to handle
clients’ listing projects. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in business

development, sales and marketing and operation management.

Mr. AU YEUNG Ming Yin Gordon, aged 43, joined the Company as
an Independent Non-executive Director on 15 March 2018. He was
appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee on 15 March 2018. Mr. Au Yeung
is the company secretary of Success Dragon International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1182) since October 2017. He is also the company
secretary of Cocoon Holdings Limited (stock code: 428) since February
2019, and was the chief financial officer and company secretary of
Huge China Holdings Limited (now known as Cocoon Holdings Limited)
since May 2015 until August 2017. He was also the company secretary
of On Real International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8245) since
August 2017 until February 2019. Since May 2000, Mr. Au Yeung held
management positions in an accounting team in ASR Logistics Holdings
Limited (now known as Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group
Limited) (stock code: 1803) until January 2015. He has over 20 years of

experience in the areas of accounting, taxation, finance and auditing.

Mr. Au Yeung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Business
(Business Administration) from the RMIT University in Australia and a
post-graduate diploma in Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong

Baptist University.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
BEENRGREBAESEHN

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. GUO Zhenhui, aged 55, joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 15 March 2018. He was appointed as a
member of each of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
on 15 March 2018. Mr. Guo held managerial positions of companies
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China which engage in
manufacturing electronic parts. He has over 35 years of experience in

manufacturing and management.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. MAN Kong Ming, aged 31, is the Financial Controller of the
Group. Mr. Man is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting,
financial management and internal control of the Group. Mr. Man holds
a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting and Finance from
The University of Hong Kong. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Man has over
9 years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial management
and previously worked in international audit firms. He joined the Group

in June 2015.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of Directors (the “Board”) has always recognised the importance
of shareholders’ accountability and transparency and is committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Company has
complied with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the “Stock Exchange”), except for certain deviations disclosed herein.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code"”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group and
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive
Directors and senior management who perform their duties under the
leadership of the Managing Director.

The Board currently consists of two Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman and Managing Director of the Company)
and Mr. Jia Minghui; and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Chan Tsz Keung, Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon and
Mr. Guo Zhenhui.
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ERERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board schedules at least four regular meetings a year and also meets
as and when required. During the year, the Board held four meetings.
The company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”) assisted
the Chairman and the Executive Directors in establishing the meeting
agenda, and each Director was able to request inclusion of items in
the agenda. All such meetings were convened in accordance with the
bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”). Under code provision A.1.3 of
the CG Code, notice of at least 14 days should be given of a regular
board meeting to give all directors an opportunity to attend. During
the year, certain Board meetings were convened with less than 14
days' notice to enable the Board members to react timely and make
expeditious decisions in respect of urgent corporate transaction and
general business update which was significant in nature. As a result,
the Board meeting was held with a shorter notice period than required
with the consent of the Directors. The Board will do its best endeavour
to meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in
the future. Adequate and appropriate information are circulated to
the Directors normally three days in advance of Board meetings or
such period accepted by them. In addition to regular Board meetings,
the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the Independent
Non-executive Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors

during the year.

Minutes of all Board and committees meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors. Draft minutes
of all Board and committees meetings are circulated to all Directors and
committees members for comments within the period accepted by them

after each meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Under (i) Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the board of directors
shall comprise at least three independent non-executive directors;
(ii) Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, at least one of the independent
non-executive directors must have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise; (iii) Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules, the audit committee shall comprise at least three
members, that at least one of whom is an independent non-executive
director with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules and that the audit committee must be chaired by an
independent non-executive director; (iv) Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules,
the remuneration committee shall comprise a majority of independent
non-executive directors; and (v) code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code,
the number of independent non-executive directors shall represent the

majority of the nomination committee.

Subsequent to the resignation of Mr. Li Kwok Fat as an Independent
Non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee
with effect from 27 December 2017, the number of Independent
Non-executive Directors and the members of the Audit Committee
fell below the minimum number required under Rules 3.10(1) and
3.21 of the Listing Rules. On 7 March 2018, Mr. Wong Siu Ki, an
Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, passed away. Subsequent to the pass away
of Mr. Wong Siu Ki, the required composition of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee fell below the requirements
under Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and code provision A.5.1 of the
CG Code. Moreover, there was not at least one of the Independent
Non-executive Directors had appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. Further, there was not at least one of
the members of the Audit Committee was an Independent Non-executive
Director with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules and that the Audit Committee was not chaired by
an Independent Non-executive Director as required under Rule 3.21

of the Listing Rules. On 15 March 2018, the Board appointed (i)

Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon as an Independent Non-executive Director,
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ERERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee, and (ii) Mr. Guo Zhenhui as an Independent
Non-executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee. Following the appointment of Mr. Au Yeung
Ming Yin Gordon and Mr. Guo Zhenhui, the Company has fully complied
with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.21 and 3.25 of the
Listing Rules and code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for specific term.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13

of the Listing Rules and considers them to be independent.

Given the nature and business objective of the Company, the Board
has a balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The list of current Directors and their
respective biographies are set out on pages 18 to 20 of this annual

report.

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors
shall retire by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company
("AGM") provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
the AGM at least once every three years. All retiring Directors shall be

eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, (1) any director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company after his appointment, or (2)
any director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following AGM after his appointment

and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced Board composition
is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the Board and has
more than one-third in number of its members comprising Independent

Non-executive Directors.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group. Each Executive Director is suitably qualified for his position, and
has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his duties

effectively and efficiently.

The attendance of each individual Director at the Board meetings, and

the AGM held on 1 June 2018 are as follow:
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EZeRBCRAYEME X5 REIEAM
BER/EABFR - EEG2HEHEKATERE
BEFEAAaEBYN EBB=92—K
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Attended/Eligible to attend

HE/SEREE

Board meetings AGM
Executive Directors HITES BE=gg; RRBFEXRE
Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman and RTFEBLE (FEF 4/4 11

Managing Director) BEFLEETE)

Mr. Jia Minghui E RS A 3/4 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHITES
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung PR B 58 5t A& 3/4 1/1
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (Note 1) BG8E oA (MEET) 3/3 1/1
Mr. Guo Zhenhui (Note 2) BB 5T A (KiFE2) 3/3 11
Mr. Wong Siu Ki (Note 3) FIRB L E (HEE3) 0/1 0/0

Notes:

1. Mr. Au Yeung Min Yin Gordon was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 15 March 2018 and there were 3 Board

meetings held after his appointment.

2. Mr. Guo Zhenhui was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 15 March 2018 and there were 3 Board meetings held after

his appointment.

3. Mr. Wong Siu Ki passed away on 7 March 2018.

1. BSHEEENR-_ZT-N\F=RATHHEZ
EABIUNPTEFTRRAEZARDREIT=

REEEEH -

2. BEBRER_Z-N\F=ZATHBEEZEE
RBEBIYFATEE AR EZERDEIT=
/A§$E = EF}"ZO

3. BABEAR-T-N\F=ALHEY-
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

During the year, a newly appointed Director was given an induction after
his appointment so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the Group's business and of his duties and responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.
The Company provides regular updates on the business performance
of the Group to the Directors. The Directors are continually updated on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeeping of good

corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional
development to develop and refresh knowledge and skills. The Company
has maintained a training record in order to assist the Directors to record
the training that they have undertaken and they are asked to submit a

training record to the Company on annual basis.

During the year, each of the individual Directors has attended training
courses or seminars or read materials relevant to his professional and/or

duties as Director.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development (continued)

The individual training record of each Director received for the year

ended 31 December 2018 is summarised below:
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EHIREERE T \F+_A=+—H
IEFEZ B E IS mT :

Course/Seminar
provided/accredited
by professional

body Reading materials
HEMERM
Executive Directors HITES RAZRRE HHE pEER
Mr. Zhang Hengxin REFBEE - v
Mr. Jia Minghui ERE L L - v
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHITES
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung PR B o8 5t A4 v v
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon BSHEEE (RZT—-N\F v -
(appointed on 15 March 2018) —A+HEBEERT)
Mr. Guo Zhenhui HEBRE (RZT—N\F v v
(appointed on 15 March 2018) “A+RBEERE)
Mr. Wong Siu Ki FBEE (RZZE-NF N/AT 33 N/AZ 38 A

(passed away on 7 March 2018) (Note) =Rt HE) (M)

Note: Mr. Wong Siu Ki passed away on 7 March 2018 and the Company has

not received the record of training.

All Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and they are committed to participating any suitable

training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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ERERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance

duties as set out below:

(a)

To develop and review the Company's policies and practices on

corporate governance;

To review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees;

and

To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,

charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in the execution

EEE (2
¥ ERBEE
EESTARBANTHR I LS AME -

HERBBSARRAZEREABRRLE
P
BAYREREERGREBARZEIIR
RESRER

R MERARREETERREERTE
TEZBERER:

HE RNLEREARESERERS 21T
REJNRERTM(WE) &

BEARRBTEEERTHZERARR
EEBERREMIEITE-

EENEARABECEARBREHE

RRABESEEAARSMBERRNT RETH
SREMELSRB2EEZMEER WE -

of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the Company has

arranged insurance cover for this purpose.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual.

Mr. Zhang Hengxin was the Chairman and the Managing Director of
the Company (the Company regards the role of its managing director
to be the same as that of chief executive under the CG Code) during
the year ended 31 December 2018. During the year under review,
the Group has been streamlining its operations, including business
development, operation efficiency and financial management. The Board
considers that it would be in the best interest of the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”) that the roles of the Chairman and the
Managing Director of the Company be combined to enable a strong
and dedicated leadership to reposition the Company and implement
effective measures to improve Shareholders’ value. In this light, the
Company has maintained Mr. Zhang Hengxin as the Chairman and
the Managing Director of the Company. The Company will review the

current structure when and as it becomes appropriate.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with a specific written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Company. No individual director is involved
in decisions relating to his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee has adopted the model under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii)
of the CG Code to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior

management.
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ERERRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued) FMEES 2

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three Directors, a HINZECREH -_KESHK EF 2
&

K%
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. During the BB IFERITTER -FAN FTWEB g 81T

year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting. N

The members of the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of FA - HFMEEEXKERESKEZHFEB LN

each member during the year are as follows: T~
Attended/
Eligible to attend
Independent Non-executive Directors BIEPITES HE/EEREE
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung (Chairman) BRE®|ALE (&) 111
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon BB LE (R —N\F 11
(appointed as member on 15 March 2018) —At+HEAEEZETEAEKS)
Mr. Wong Siu Ki (passed away on 7 March 2018) FhBELE (RZTE—NF= A HEH) 0/0
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Zhang Hengxin REHEELE ”n
During the year, the Remuneration Committee performed the following HF RN HMMEZESEITA THE :
duties:
- reviewed and recommended the remuneration packages of the - B MEZWNTEENSAETEAEBRE
Executive Directors and senior management for the year ended E-N\F+ZA=Z+—HLEFEZFH W
31 December 2018; and FE R
- reviewed and recommended the remuneration package of the - B hEZHZATETHEZ_ZT—\F
newly appointed Directors for the year ended 31 December 2018. TZA=T—HLEFEZHFMESE
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with a specific written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the

Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
The Company will also take into consideration factors based on its own
business model and specific needs from time to time in determining the

optimum composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three Directors, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. During the

year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting.
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The members of the Nomination Committee and the attendance of each FR - IRZEZEE@KERZKE ZHFE B R
member during the year are as follows: R
Attended/
Eligible to attend
Executive Director BITESE HE/ AEREE
Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman) RE&LE (EE) 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFBITES
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung BR B 598 55 4 1/1
Mr. Guo Zhenhui (appointed as member on WEBHRE (RZT—N\F 11
15 March 2018) ZAThBEZERKE)
Mr. Wong Siu Ki (passed away on 7 March 2018) FHRBAEE(RZT—N\F=AHEH) 0/0
ERERERAT
2018 F 1R
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ERERRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee performed the following
duties:

(@) reviewed the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service) of the Board;

(b) identified individual suitably qualified to become Board member

and made recommendation to the Board on his appointment;

(c) assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive

Directors; and

(d) made recommendations to the Board on the retiring Directors for

re-election at the AGM for 2018.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available

on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process and risk management and internal control

systems of the Group and providing advice and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (Chairman),
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung and Mr. Guo Zhenhui. During the year, the Audit

Committee held two meetings.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
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The members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each H R BXRZEEKELREKEZHEB LT
member during the year are as follows: T
Attended/
Eligible to attend
Independent Non-executive Directors BAHITESE HEAEEHE
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (Chairman)  BBS8B %4 (/&) (B —N\F=A+HH 2/2
(appointed as chairman on BEERERF)
15 March 2018)
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung PR B 5 5t A4 2/2
Mr. Guo Zhenhui (appointed as SPEEIE A (R —N\FE=ZATHBEZXAEKE) 2/2
member on 15 March 2018)
Mr. Wong Siu Ki (Former Chairman) BIRBELE (FTEE) (R —\F=AEBEi) 0/0
(passed away on 7 March 2018)
During the year, the Audit Committee performed the following duties: FAN - BEREZESERITUTHRE:
(a) reviewed with the auditor the audited financial statements for the (a) BE&RHMERBEMHEZEZE-_ZT—+F+=A

year ended 31 December 2017 and reviewed the unaudited interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2018, with

recommendations to the Board for approval;

(b) reviewed report on risk management and internal control systems  (b)

covering financial, operational and compliance controls;

(c) reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory  (c)

requirements;

(d) reviewed with the management of the Company the accounting  (d)

principles and practices adopted by the Group;

=T -HLEFEZRERMBRRNEBE
—NFERA=ZTBEIERNEAZRERE
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ERERRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

(e) considered the independent auditor’s independence and fees in
relation to the audited financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2017; and

(f) reviewed and recommended to the Board the auditor’s

re-appointment and remuneration.

Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon, chairman of the Audit Committee,
possesses appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.21 of

the Listing Rules.

INVESTMENT AND MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The investment and management committee of the Company
("Investment and Management Committee”) was established by the
Board with written terms of reference. The terms of reference are

available on the website of the Company.

The Investment and Management Committee is responsible for
managing and supervising daily operation of the Company, reviewing
and evaluating any proposed investment activities of the Company and
making recommendation to the Board on the transactions which the
percentage ratio equal to or higher than 5% according to the testing
result of the Listing Rules. It also monitors the investments of the Group.
The Investment and Management Committee currently comprises two
Executive Directors,

Mr. Jia Minghui.

namely Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman) and

During the year, the Investment and Management Committee performed

the following duties:

— managed and supervised daily operation of the Company and

monitored investments of the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Group incurred fees and charges by the auditor, Elite Partners CPA
Limited, in respect of audit and non-audit services during the year as

follows:
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TR EE AR QA S 2 B R R
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SR NN

Fees paid/payable

gt ENER
HK$’000
Services rendered RAEH R FHET
Audit services 1ZER % 520
Non-audit services A% BUR 75 -
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT BEMEREX
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial ZEFEBERBEAZIENEERAEHFEAES

statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods under
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, the results of operations and the cash
flows of the Group. In preparing the financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2018 and for the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them
in conformity with all applicable accounting standards and requirements.
The Directors have prepared the accounts for the reporting year on a

going concern basis.

The responsibility of the Company’s external auditor, Elite Partners CPA
Limited, with respect to these financial statements are set out in the

“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 81 to 89 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing
their effectiveness. Management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of such systems, while the Board which
delegated such duties and responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
oversees management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. The
risk management and internal control systems are designed to assist in
the achievement of business objectives of the Group, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure proper maintenance of
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or publication and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulation. The risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not

absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises risk

identification, risk evaluation and risk management.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process within its scope
of responsibility and authority. Risks are evaluated by the Board and
management based on (i) the severity of the impact of the risks on the
Company'’s financial results; (ii) the probability that the risks will occur;

and (iii) the velocity or speed at which risks could occur.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems (continued)

Risk Management System (continued)
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Based on the risk evaluation, the Group will manage the risk as follows:

Risk elimination — management may identify and implement certain

changes or controls that in effect eliminate the risk entirely.

Risk mitigation — management may implement risk mitigation plan
designed to reduce the likelihood, velocity or severity of the risk to

an acceptable level.

Risk monitoring — accidents and other situations involving material

loss or near-loss will be investigated and properly documented as
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part of the effort to manage risks.

o Risk retention — management may decide that the risk rating is
low enough that the risk is at acceptable level and no action is
required. The risk will continue to be monitored as part of the risk

management program to ensure the level of risk does not increase

to an unacceptable level.
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ERERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems (continued)

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables
the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency
of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The key components of the internal

control system are shown as follow:

. Control environment — A set of standards, processes and structures
are established to provide the basis for carrying out internal control

across the Group.

o Risk assessment — A dynamic and iterative process is conducted for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives,

forming a basis for determining how risks should be managed.

o Control activities — Actions established by policies and procedures
to help ensure management mitigates risks in the achievement of

objectives of the Group are carried out.

o Information and communication - Internal and external
communication are made to provide the Group with the information

needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring — Ongoing and separate evaluations are conducted to
ascertain whether each component of internal control is present

and functioning.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems (continued)

Internal Control System (continued)

In addition, the Company regulates the handling and dissemination of
inside information to ensure inside information remains confidential until
the disclosure of such information is appropriately approved, and the
dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently made.
The Company has taken various procedures and measures to prevent
a breach of disclosure requirement, including arousing the awareness
to the Directors and employees to preserve confidentiality of inside
information and disseminating information to specified persons on a

need-to-know basis.

Internal Audit

The Company has not established an internal audit department and the
Directors are of the view that given the size, nature and complexity of
the business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint an
independent internal control review advisor (“Internal Control Advisor"),
which is independent of the Group’s daily operation and consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise, to perform the review on risk
management and internal control systems of the Group in order to meet

its needs.
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ERERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control Review

The Board itself and through the Audit Committee and the Internal
Control Advisor has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems of the Group, which cover
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance

controls.

The Internal Control Advisor has conducted interviews with relevant
staff members, reviewed relevant documentation of risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, evaluated findings of
any deficiencies in the systems and provided recommendations for
improvement. The scope and findings of review on the systems have
been reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee, who has further

reported to the Board for its review at Board meeting.

In addition to the work of the Internal Control Advisor and review by the
Audit Committee, several areas have been considered during the Board’s
review, which include but not limited to (i) adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting functions; (ii) the changes
in the nature and extent of significant risks since the last annual review,
and the Group's ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment; and (iii) the scope and quality of management'’s

ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems.

As a result of the above review, the Board considers that the Group's risk
management and internal control systems are effective and adequate for

the year ended 31 December 2018.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with all
Shareholders. The AGM is a valuable avenue for the Board to enter
into direct dialogue with Shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and
the chairman of Board committees will attend the AGM to answer any
question. In addition, the Company will convene special general meeting
("SGM") to approve transaction and/or matter in accordance with the
Listing Rules and the corporate governance procedures of the Company.
These will provide further opportunities for Shareholders to comment

and vote on specific transaction and/or matter.

The interim and annual reports of the Company are despatched to
Shareholders in a timely manner before the time limits laid by statutory
and Listing Rules requirements to ensure effective communication with

Shareholders.

All the Shareholders are given at least 20 clear business days’ notice
before the date of AGM and at least 10 clear business days' notice for

all other general meetings.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements and notices
of Shareholders’ meetings as required under the Listing Rules will be

available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has also complied with the requirements concerning voting
by poll under the Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and
the rights of Shareholders to demand a poll are included in circulars to
Shareholders despatched by the Company and explained by the chairman
of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions proposed at general

meeting are voted separately.
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ERERRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)
Procedures for Convening a SGM

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
SGM. Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company may send a written request to the

Board to request for a SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the Shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 1104,
Crawford House, 70 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong or at
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda

("Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings

The following Shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general

meeting of the Company:
(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the

requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings (continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 1104,
Crawford House, 70 Queen's Road Central, Central, Hong Kong or at
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions
and make necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned
would be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto
in accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the

Companies Act once valid documents are received.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director
for election as a Director at a general meeting, the Shareholder should
follow the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election

as a Director”, which can be found on the website of the Company.
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TEEREBE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the

Board in writing via the following channel:

The Board of Directors/Company Secretary
AMCO United Holding Limited

Unit 1104, Crawford House

70 Queen’s Road Central, Central

Hong Kong

E-mail: info@amco-united.com

Telephone: (852) 2961 4871

Facsimile: (852) 2125 7001

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.
COMPANY SECRETARY

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Hung Tsz Ching, the
Company Secretary of the Company, has taken no less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December 2018.
INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional

documents during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

INTRODUCTION
Corporate Profile

AMCO United Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
Medical Devices Business, Plastic Moulding Business, Building Contract
Works Business, Money Lending Business and Securities Investment.
The Group takes into account environmental, social and economic
considerations and has been striving to incorporate various sustainability
initiatives, such as environmental management system, green office
scheme, etc., into its daily operations, aiming to measure and manage

the impacts effectively and efficiently.

About this Report

The Group reaffirms its commitment towards sustainability with the
publication of its third Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
report. This report is prepared in compliance with the ESG Reporting
Guide issued by the Stock Exchange set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the integrity
of the ESG report and confirms that it has reviewed and approved
the report. To the best of its knowledge, this report addresses all
relevant material topics and fairly presents the environmental and social

performance of the Group and its impacts.
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R -HBERERRE

INTRODUCTION (continued)
Reporting Period and Scope

This report covers all operations of the Group and describes its initiatives
and progress in respect of environmental and social aspects for the year
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. Additional information
pertaining to our sustainability performance, including comprehensive

financial information and data, can be found in this annual report.

Feedback

While the report aims to be plain, clear and easy-to-read, we appreciate
any comments that can help improve the content provided in this report.
Any queries or suggestions regarding the content of this report can be

directed to:

AMCO United Holding Limited

Address: Unit 1104, Crawford House, 70 Queen’s Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2961 4871

Fax: (852) 2125 7001

Email: info@amco-united.com

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group is determined to establish a business model that increases
considerations on sustainability. Ongoing improvement on measuring,
managing and disclosing our ESG performance is, therefore, key to our

ESG management approach.

The major impact of our operations lies on the supply chain as most of
our operations are outsourced. We, therefore, have put our focus on
supply chain management, ensuring that our suppliers and contractors
are environmentally and socially responsible. While we encourage
business partners to share our ESG values, we closely monitor their
ESG performance and status of compliance with all applicable laws and

regulations.

Striving for excellent product and service quality, the Group's Building
Contract Works Business has established an Integrated Management
System (IMS) which abides by I1SO 9001, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001.
The IMS has established several policies and objectives, identified the
roles and responsibilities of employees, aiming to provide customers with
high quality, environment-friendly and secure services. During the year,
the Building Contract Works Business renewed its ISO 9001, ISO 14001
and OHSAS 18001 certification.

The Group attaches great importance to human resources management.
We are devoted to protecting employees’ rights, providing employees
with training for continuous development and creating a safe and
healthy working environment. Externally, we actively allocate resources

and contribute to the society.

The Group appreciates the support from all of its stakeholders including
investors, employees, customers, suppliers, etc., received during the
year. The Group is committed to mitigating the impacts of its business

operations on the environment and contributing to the community.
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R -HBERERRE

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH (continued)
Stakeholder Engagement

The Group maintains regular engagement with its stakeholders through
channels and platforms such as corporate reporting, regular meetings
and surveys, etc. Below are the key communication channels and topics

that stakeholders are concerned about.

Key Topics
FTERE

Shareholders/Investors

R REE

« Financial performance
MR

- Corporate governance
BEER

« Risk management
EpER

« Operations and strategy
R R

Employees « Welfare and benefits
B8 BH
«Training and development
ElRERE
« Occupational health and safety

L ES e

Customers « Product responsibility
=P EmAE
- Data privacy

BURLE

« Product and service quality
EmlREEE
« Business ethics

[SESGEE

Suppliers/Contractors

AL P S =

The Government « Taxation compliance
BT MBER
- Regulatory compliance
EEEGH

« Business ethics

[BES L

Community - Community investment

i HEREE

OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group insists on integrity of its operations and tries to strengthen
corporate discipline. Meanwhile, we strive to provide customers with
high quality products and services through maintaining a reliable supply

chain and optimising operating practices.
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Engagement Channels

« Annual general meetings
BRBFRE
. Corporate reports and announcements

T#ﬁtt&/\tl:

« Grievance handling sessions
R RIEEH
- Conferences

« Customer satisfaction surveys

BEPMBEERE

+ Regular meetings

g

« Compliance with laws and regulations
BFEEER
« Responses to government policies

BRBTBER

«Volunteering and donation
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BE HERELRRE

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued) EEER#)
Supply Chain Management HEEHEE R
As most of our operations are outsourced, maintaining a stable and HREMABO LKL UININB TR ETT #iF

productive supply chain is key to the Group's success. We strive to
establish mutually beneficial working relationships with suppliers and

contractors to jointly enhance product and service quality.

We require our suppliers and contractors to adhere to sustainable
business practices. The Group evaluates and monitors their environmental
and social performance in terms of ethical issues, human rights, product
responsibility and environmental impact, making sure that all suppliers
and contractors adhere to our code of conduct and procurement policies.
In return, we provide transparency and fairness in our procurement

process and contractual arrangements.
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The Group's Building Contract Works Business engages subcontractors ANEBMEFABTREFRZESBRMARE
for projects works including building construction, building FE2#&E BFHEINETRE EEREHNS
maintenance and improvement works, revocation and decoration works. IEEH T - HfELEAEEISORESE =Y
Subcontractors with comprehensive quality management systems and EEEERNLZ2EREZNHIBEE -DEHE

safety management systems such as ISO certification are given priority.

They are selected according to the following criteria:

Reputation

BE

Compliance
=ys) e %%e,

THRIZIA TR 1T EE

Qualification
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2018 £
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R -HBERERRE

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Supply Chain Management (continued)

The Group adopts multiple procedures to monitor the service provided
by subcontractors. Technical directors and engineers are responsible for
monitoring and supervising the works carried out by subcontractors.
After consultation with the technical directors, the engineers review and
analyse whether the service levels and capabilities of the subcontractors

meet our requirements.

If any supplier or contractor is found to have a low score, we examine
whether its performance will affect the quality of our products or
services and take remedial actions where appropriate. The Medical
Devices Business and Plastic Moulding Business maintain stable and
long-term relationships with major suppliers to ensure reliable supply of

certified products.

Product Responsibility

The Group strives to meet customers’ demands and expectations through
maintaining high quality of services and products. We keep optimising
our quality management system, focusing on products and services

standards, data privacy and customer satisfaction.

The Medical Devices Business manufacturing facility is ISO
13485'-certified and U.S. FDA?-registered. In order to meet the stringent
qualification requirements and approval from regulatory authorities,
we undergo strict quality control testing and get our products certified
by third parties before sending them to the market. During the year,
the Medical Devices Business completed the renewal of ISO 13485

certification and FDA registration.

! Quality management system of molding and assembly of medical device

components for diabetics care.

2 The Food and Drug Administration of the United States of America. The Medical
Devices Business holds FDA certification for Class | Medical Devices.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Product Responsibility (continued)

As a registered general building contractor and a registered minor works
contractor under the Buildings Ordinance in Hong Kong, the Group's
Building Contract Works Business has a well-developed operational
procedure that standardises project management and supervision of
works conducted by subcontractors to ensure conformity to contractual

specifications. The following diagram illustrates its operational flow:

BE HERELRRE

EEER &)
EmET#)

EAREE CREWKROD) THTMERERE
FRFEMNEIEREAER AEENEFAE
ITREBHETENEERF WU BRE
TOIRAREECHEEEEREE BIR
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Tendering Phase
R

Implementation Phase
HATHE R

Review and Completion Phase
BT TR ER

« Project identification « Tender analysis « Formation of a « Inspection
1H B R and assessment project management Bl
TR KT team
« Invitation for tender FAZIE B B IR EK - Completion
R L

« Procurement of
materials and
equipment

- Certification

e
POAE

REBMEL N 3R A

« Delegation of

« Defects liability/
maintenance period

works to subcontractors EREG BT, 4
Mo EEYIKRIRE

The Building Contract Works Business follows the work guidelines
stipulated in IMS, which is in line with ISO 9001 Quality Management
System, so as to minimize potential risks during the construction process.

Quality management objectives are set up under the IMS:
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OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

Product Responsibility (continued)

Quality Management Objectives

BEEEEER

«To ensure that the customer
satisfaction level achieves a
specified score
BREFWEEES
HIES

+ To minimize the number of
formal written complaints
received from customers for
the same project during the
same year
BARERIRE—FE

ME—IEERENEFE

AEEERFZHE

The Group complies with all applicable laws, regulations and

delays

international standards while conducting quality inspection in the
designated construction phase and prior to product delivery. IMS
managers are assigned to investigate, follow up and report any
non-conforming products or services. We make corrections where

appropriate to avoid recurrence of similar incidents.

Data Privacy and Customer Satisfaction

The Group respects the privacy of its customers and maintains the
highest security and confidentiality on customer data. We strictly comply
with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and have established a set of
rules to guide employees in protecting customer information. Employees
are responsible to protect customer information against improper
disclosure, misuse or unauthorised use, loss, damage or corruption.
They exercise caution and obtain prior permission before disclosing any

confidential information to any party outside the organisation.

To continuously improve the quality of our services, we regularly collect
and analyse customer feedback in aspects of quoted price, service
attitudes, product quality, site conditions, delivery, communication, etc.

Corrections are made to ensure customer satisfaction.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any violations of relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group,
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to the products and services provided.
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«To monitor and review work
procedures to ensure no

BB MRTER TR ARE
REBIERIEN L

« All work defects raised by
customers must be
followed up promptly upon
receipt
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Anti-corruption

The Group believes that honesty, integrity and fair play constitute
important practices. We have established a robust internal control
framework to prevent behaviours such as bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering. A code of conduct has been stipulated in the
staff handbook which lists proper business practices and prohibited
acts, including soliciting advantages and accepting gifts. The Group’s
operations comply with all anti-corruption related laws and regulations,
including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. During the year, the
Group was not aware of any violations of relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group,

relating to bribery,

extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Conflict of Interest

Our employees are regularly reminded that they must declare to the
Directors any conflict of interest that may arise or has risen between
their personal interests and those of the Group, and to avoid engaging
in business, investments or activities that might result in conflict with
interests of the Group. Directors should disclose potential conflicts of

interest to the Board.

Whistle-blowing Policy

We encourage the reporting of suspected internal business irregularities
and provide clear channels specifically for this purpose. Any employee
who becomes aware of any existing or potential breach of the code
of conduct is encouraged to report promptly to the human resources
department. The Group takes appropriate actions, including disciplinary

action, termination of employment or preventive action.

Cases of suspected corruption or other criminal offences are reported
to the Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) or other
appropriate authorities. During the year, there were no concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its

employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

The Group is committed to improve its environmental performance on
an ongoing basis. The most significant environmental impact of our
office-based operations is carbon emissions from energy consumption of
office premises and vehicles. In this regard, the Group conducts activities
in an environmentally responsible manner and has implemented an
environmental policy. The Group’s environmental management approach

is described as below.

T
I

BRER

AEEHORFERZERRRER - RAOHR
RELBEBHRBELTNBRAZERMAZTYE
KO EREREMMEL MBI Bt AEE A
HERFRRANDARRER LS YEEE
BRRBR - ARENRRELETHOTEMAR -

Compliance with all applicable environmental legislation, standards and regulations

BTHAERRREAR - BRI ER

Environmental Management
B

Effective environmental management throughout all business practices

EMAXBERTEREEARNREER

The implementation of measures to prevent pollution, minimise energy and materials consumption and reduce
waste at source by Reduce, Reuse and Recycle (3R) initiatives

HITHRIER 53 R BER R EDEREL B @R A ER - EEN A MIERBIEGR)RAMEREREE

Green Procurement

RIRERRS

The incorporation of environmental considerations into the procurement process, and improved environmental
performance throughout the supply chain

BREZBARGARBBIE - WIRFHEENBRRRRE

-

Raise environmental awareness among staff through education and training

BBHE BRI E THRREH

PoIicy Review
B R AR

Review the policy regularly and ensure the continual improvement of environmental performance

E Bt s BUR W IR N Z IRIRR I
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Building Contract Works Business manages its environmental
impact through the IMS which follows the ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System. Environmental management objectives are set up

under the IMS:

BE HERER®RSE

CHRMBBFAISO

HAEEARR
2

PE AR
ERERIIATERE

Environmental Management Objectives

RREEER

«To ensure proper disposal of
chemical waste and avoid

«To ensure legal compliance
of engineering activity

BEHMESRE EAVEES

The Group's operations strictly comply with all environmental laws and
regulations, including Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Ozone Layer
Protection Ordinance, Water Pollution Control Ordinance and Waste
Disposal Ordinance. During the year, the Group was not aware of any
violations of relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group, relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.

«To reduce pollution caused
by air conditioning system

release of toxic gases HRETIREERHER in offic premises electricity consumption
BREZERB(CERER e BOPRNELRREGES R RAR{E A R B I EFE

«To reduce paper
consumption and
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT (continued)
Resources Consumption

The major types of resources consumed by the Group’s daily operations
are electricity, gasoline and water. In 2018, the gasoline used by private
vehicles was 4,971 litres (2017: 4,830 litres) and electricity consumed by
office premises was 38,191 kWh (2017: 49,117 kWh). The total energy
consumption by electricity and gasoline was 295,924 MJ (2017: 330,747 MJ)
and the energy consumption intensity was 2,636 MJ per million HKD revenue

(2017: 3,761 MJ per million HKD revenue).

Total Energy Consumption

RIRE®E ()
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT (continved) REEE (#)
Resources Consumption (continued) BRER 2
Our total water consumption in 2018 was 6.00 tonnes (2017: 5.82 —Z— N\F KFANHKEE B6.00HE (-

tonnes) and the water consumption intensity was 0.053 tonne per —-+t 4 :5821) MKEREREZEAERSE
million HKD revenue (2017: 0.066 tonne per million HKD revenue). There BT A0.053 (= ZE—+F  FEHE Bt

was no issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. A0.066W8) ° F 1P 1 K B FR 7K R 75 1 3 48
fo] I 78

Total Water Consumption (tonnes)

kg (W8)

5.82

2017 2018
5 e

The Group's operations do not involve any material use of packaging ANEBEMNLELESNEARFERABEM K-

material.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT (continued)
Emissions

The Group’s greenhouse gases (GHG) emissions include direct emissions
(Scope 1) from gasoline used and indirect emissions (Scope 2) from
electricity consumption. In 2018, our total GHG emissions amounted to
34.01 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCOe) (2017: 42.30 tCO,e)
and the GHG emission intensity was 0.30 tCO,e per million HKD revenue

(2017: 0.48 tCOe per million HKD revenue).
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R HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT (continued)
Emissions (continued)

In 2018, gasoline consumption of the Group generated air emissions
comprising sulphur oxides (SOx), nitrogen oxides (NOx) and particulate
matters (PM) amounting to 0.073 kg (2017: 0.071 kg), 2.985 kg
(2017: 4.698 kg) and 0.220 kg (2017: 0.346 kg), respectively. Due
to our office-based operations, the volume of hazardous waste and

non-hazardous waste produced is considered to be immaterial.

RIEEE (#)
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT (continued)
Green Office: Let's GO

This is the second year of the Group’s participation in the green office
initiative designed by a third-party consultancy firm, “Let’'s GO". The
scheme enables us to incorporate concepts of sustainable development
into our daily operations and reduce our environmental footprint through
professional assessment and advice. The following green office practices

are widely adopted in the Group's office premises:

REEE #)
BERN  EBER

HAAEEE _F2LEAFE=TBEHEQAKSE
HAR M A& AR =R ] - T BRI
ARHEERNESBAZRMANBAELESD
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Resources Conservation

B IR

Plastic
£

A K

Miscellaneous
Hitb

Use double-sided printing/

photocopying

RAEEITE, R

Minimise spare provisions
when printing

FTENR; =8B A 3T

Use electronic supporting
medium, such as tablet and

o Collect reusable
plastic packaging
material

Yo ks ] BHE I Y22
Hermns
® Encourage suppliers

to recollect the
packaging material

e Purchase
multi-function
devices, such as
printing, scanning,
photocopy and fax
HBEZIRERE -
AIFTED - 4@ fd - 2ED
rEER

Donate or dispose of

Ensure no leaky taps

o Make surplus

in the office materials/equipment
NG available to other
Egi%’g#fi’Xﬁ’ﬁm departments before

Adopt water taps
with automatic
sensors

A B B REKEESR
Install toilet with dual
flush cistern systems

lyiestis kvl
EGESD

disposal

NI E BRI R
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BBFIEE A

Centrally monitor

common consumable
items to avoid
duplication in purchase
SHEE HEERER
At SRR

Food and beverages
are well-planned for

SEEpL 3
projector ﬁ[‘fﬁm%ﬁéﬁ@w@ﬁ WEEE through proper
ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁz%mm . . schemes

< e ¢ Provide sufficient S Yy ke 2 42 B o
BRMREE reusable tableware %g%%g%g%ﬁ
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MR A AEA areas for WEEE
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5 "bottle-water free” o = i
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Reuse used envelopes for
internal mailing

EREREIETRIE S
Prioritize electronic media
over printed media
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3 Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
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size of events/meetings
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Use web-conferencing
to avoid travel
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

Green Office: Let's GO (continued)

BE HERELRRE

RIEEE (#)
BERD BEBEHE &)

Energy Conservation
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A|rC0nd|t|on|ng

.
.

Switch off air
conditioning system
when not in use

Switch off light when
not in use

M R R R

Retrofit fluorescent
lamps with LED lamps

FALEDRE & #ss H f5
Maximise the use of

ME R RIS RASE

Maintain the indoor
temperature at 25.5°C

HRFEPRE 725.5°C

e Install solar films on natural light
windows BEFHERK
o o HE 1S 7
EHEREREE o Clean lighting

tubes/bulbs periodically
;Hﬁ/a SERRAAEE

7

To raise the environmental awareness of our employees and drive
behavioural change, employees are asked to make a pledge online about
creating a greener workplace. Green office stickers and posters are used

to remind them to develop greener office habits.

Office Equipment
NS

¢ Switch off equipment
when not in use

TME R R

Maintain equipment
properly to reduce
energy consumption

SREREBARDEE
ﬁf

i

Purchase office
equipment with high
energy efficiency labels
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT (continued)
Subcontractors Management

We are committed to minimising the environmental footprint of our
outsourced operations. For waste management, the Group's Building
Contract Works Business strictly complies with the Waste Disposal
(Charges for Disposal of Construction Waste) Regulation. It applies for
billing account* for disposal of construction waste to adhere to the

polluter-pays principle.

The Building Contract Works Business also properly collects wastewater
and then discharges it into sewage system; collects waste oil cans for
centralised disposal; and examines the Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS)
of solvents used. The Plastic Moulding Business recycles scrap plastic

materials and resells to upstream suppliers.

OUR PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY

The Group has developed a working environment in which management
and employees work together in a cooperative and responsible manner,
striving to adopt the best social practices and maintain good employee

relations.

Talent Management

The Group has formulated comprehensive human resources policies to
ensure its operations comply with domestic labour laws and regulations,
including Employment Ordinance and Minimum Wage Ordinance. The
policies include employment terms and conditions, working hours, rest
periods, promotion, compensation and dismissal, benefits and welfare,
staff training and development, employee code of conduct and corporate

practices.

4 The Construction Waste Disposal Charging Scheme has come into operation on
1 December 2005. According to the scheme, main contractor who undertakes
construction work under a contract with value of $1 million or above is required to

open a billing account solely for the contract.
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OUR PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY (continued)
Talent Management (continued)

We offer competitive remuneration packages to attract and retain
talented staff, in which discretionary bonus and other benefits including
mandatory provident fund and medical care are provided. Our employees
are entitled to annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave, jury service
leave, compensation leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave,
paternity leave and public holidays under the Employment Ordinance. In
addition, we carry out regular salary reviews for our employees, on the
basis of the employee’s performance, financial condition of the Group

and external factors such as the condition of the Hong Kong economy.

Equal Opportunities, Diversity and Anti-discrimination

The Group is committed to providing a non-discriminating workplace
which is free of intimidation and harassment. The Group offers equal
opportunities of employment irrespective of sex, age, marital status,

ethnicity, religion, disability or employment status.

Labour Standards

While the Group does not operate in locations where child labour risk
is relatively high, we work closely with our suppliers and subcontractors
to ensure they do not use forced or child labour in their production
facilities or construction sites. During the year, the Group did not receive

any reports relating to the use of child or forced labour.

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing safe and healthy working
conditions, equipment and systems for all employees, and to provide

such information, training and supervision as they need for the purpose.

We strictly comply with all occupational safety related laws and
regulations, including the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance,
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance and Fire Services Ordinance. During
the year, the Group was not aware of any violations of relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group, relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.
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OUR PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY (continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (continued)

Our office-based operations do not involve any high-risk areas related
to occupational health and safety (OHS) of its staffs. Nevertheless, the
Group has implemented a health and safety policy and ascertained every
employee is fully aware of his/her role and responsibilities for promoting
and maintaining a safe and healthy working environment. A number of
precautionary measures have been taken to ensure office security, such
as avoiding placing obstructions in passageways and exits. In addition,
our employees are insured under the employees’ compensation insurance
in accordance with the requirement of the Employees’ Compensation

Ordinance.

The Group is aware of the OHS risk in its supply chain. The Building
Contract Works Business manages the subcontractors’ OHS performance
through the IMS which abides by the OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health
and Safety Management System. It monitors health and safety measures
implemented by the subcontractors to ascertain effective controls are
in place to mitigate health and safety risk at construction sites. OHS

objectives are established under the IMS:

OHS Objective
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« To strengthen OHS awareness

of employees, and achieve

zero violation of OHS laws and
regulations
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safety of employees and
strictly monitor the accident
rate per half year to be zero
EREENBER 2 RER
ERTLENEHERT



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OUR PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY (continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (continued)

The Building Contract Works Business’s OHS management system
consists of six major components: work hazard analysis, personal
protective equipment (PPE), employee safety manual, risk assessment,
health protection plan, and fire safety. Project managers carry out
regular site visits to monitor OHS performance of its subcontractors and
ensure that safety managers are performing their duties properly. The
safety managers are assigned to carry out work hazard analysis and risk
assessment and ensure that workers are equipped with appropriate and

sufficient PPE.

PPE
EAP &R

Work Hazard
Analysis
TEEEDIT
> Management
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Risk Assessment s . . o
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Fire Safety

PSS
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OUR PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY (continued)
Training and Development

The Group invests in training and development to sustain a competent
and professional workforce that is able to contribute to its success.
We provide continuous training and development opportunities for
employees, at both professional and personal levels, to motivate
and up-skill existing staffs to align with our business needs and the

ever-changing environment.

All new employees receive induction training. On-job training including
professional skills, customer service skills and environmental knowledge
is provided to help employees get familiar with the job duties. To support
employees for fulfilling their career aspirations, the Group has a tuition
reimbursement scheme for staffs taking courses related to their job

duties taken at reputable institutions.

To cultivate a team of professionals that will contribute to our success,
competent employees are promoted to senior positions based on merit.
Salary increases, improved benefits and changes in job titles are usually

associated with promotions.

Community Care

Striving to be a responsible corporate citizen, we are committed to
making our community a better place to live. We respect local culture
and value, encourage our employees to participate and contribute in

community activities on a voluntary basis.

In 2018, the Group participated in various charitable activities, including
the “Community Chest Dress Casual Day” and “Community Chest Love
Teeth Day"”. We also made sponsorship in the “Goodman Interlink Magic
Mile Charity Ramp Run”, which supports a three-year eye healthcare
project undertaken by The Fred Hollows Foundation in Huanxian
County, Gansu Province. We hope that these activities can help create a

harmonious society, bearing our fair share of social responsibility.
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 32 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
is set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 6 to 8 and pages 9 to 17 respectively of this

annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on pages 90 to 91 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 220 of this annual

report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital are set out in

Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no reserve of the Company
which is available for distribution to Shareholders at 31 December 2018
and 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Jia Minghui

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Tsz Keung

Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (appointed on 15 March 2018)
Mr. Guo Zhenhui (appointed on 15 March 2018)

Mr. Wong Siu Ki (passed away on 7 March 2018)

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Chan Tsz Keung
and Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon shall retire by rotation from office
at the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible, will offer themselves for

re-election.

The directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of the

Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Zhang Hengxin

Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin

Mr. Wong Wai Keung Alfred
Mr. Lee King Vi

Ms. Chung Wai Fong

Mr. Fong Kwok Wai

Mr. Cheng Kin Chor

Mr. Wang Tong

Mr. Yu Chengbin
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chan Tsz Keung, an Independent Non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 October 2017, which may be terminated by one
month’s notice in writing served by the Company on Mr. Chan or by

instant notice in writing served by Mr. Chan on the Company.

Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon, an Independent Non-executive Director,
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 15 March 2018, which may be
terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by the Company on
Mr. Au Yeung or by instant notice in writing served by Mr. Au Yeung on

the Company.

Mr. Guo Zhenhui, an Independent Non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 15 March 2018, which may be terminated by
one month’s notice in writing served by the Company on Mr. Guo or by

instant notice in writing served by Mr. Guo on the Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other

than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTIONS
Share Option Scheme

On 30 June 2015, the Company adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”), which was approved by the Shareholders at the AGM

held on the same date.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
share options to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards for

their contributions to the Group.

According to the Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant share
options to the eligible participants as defined in the Share Option
Scheme to subscribe for such number of shares as the Board may
determine. Share options granted should be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the letter of grant. Upon acceptance of the share
options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant. Subject to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and all applicable laws, the Board has the power to determine

the period within which payments or calls must or may be made.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined by the Board,
which shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
the grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant;

and (iii) the nominal value of a share.
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of approval and
adoption of the Share Option Scheme provided that the Company may at
any time seek approval from the Shareholders to refresh the limit to 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of approval by the Shareholders in
general meeting where such limit is refreshed. Share options previously
granted under any share option schemes of the Company (including
those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes or
exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the

limit as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible participant
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant unless such
grant has been duly approved by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders
in general meeting at which the relevant eligible participant and his
associates abstained from voting. Share options granted to substantial
Shareholders or Independent Non-executive Directors or any of their
respective associates in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of
the Company’s issued share capital on the date of grant and with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the

Shareholders.

The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no share
option can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted.
There is no general requirement that a share option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised. The Share Option Scheme is
valid and effective for a period of ten years and will expire at the close

of business on 29 June 2025.

Directors’ Report

EEERE

BRE w2
BIRESTE ()

RTT AR 15 8 AR 5t 80 AN & BT ] A i i
BB TREZHMEBREN A THITZK
PEE LR NG BRI /E MR R R 5t
EERARAEEHITRAZI0% HEARR A
e Uk AR AL A LR\ ERRNIREAKR
BEMEFH ERERDETRND Z10% - &
FEHEEHERME  EAREBEARREME
st B R 2 BRE (BRIRER B E W
RITE - -BEH SRBRHCTEZERE) S
TFEtE

HERLAH (BFZB) LEMA1218 A 85
PR 7165 4R 4% 8 AR M T 1 I A & R AE ] HL fth B AR
RiAEBRLCERE(DEBITE BEFHEE
MARITEZBRE)MBRITRATEARTT
EEER2REZROBE THBAEKTNE
BEBITRG Z1% R LAEEREDS N
RAE FERE L @RERA N ER B8]
BN MREEARRAE L HEEEKE
HEREBEABERERSE R EM1218 A &
MBEFEERRABUIIFRTESTIEMARS
EEBEALTZEREEARLBHAQFE
BITIRANZ0.1% A R (B {E 8 85,000,000 7T
Bl ZEENR R == S b o

BREZTENSHEFS2EDNBET IE
EAERETNERELREBIOFZRITE:
—RREBRBASAKEMERT AT

E-BREASAYARTERIR T -4
FRNAZTNBEERREREEW-

ERERERAF

2018 F 3R

71



72

Directors’ Report

BEEERE
SHARE OPTIONS (continued) BRRE 2
Share Option Scheme (continued) BRAESTE ()

At the AGM held on 1 June 2018, the Company was authorised to R-ZE—N\EXA-BET2REBFAE -
refresh the scheme mandate limit to issue a maximum of 186,267,948 AR BEREE =t &F# LR IABIEERE
share options under the Share Option Scheme. Notwithstanding 5t &|3775&%186,267 948 A - BT Ll
the forgoing, the shares which may be issued upon exercise of all & EITEMBERIEERETEEARBEM
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share EfEREEIDREEASITEZEREM
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company at  AJ4£3 /T Z IR D RIS R TS BB T D 2%

any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. fTIR1D 230% ©

The following table discloses movements in the Company's share TXRBEEHZ_ZT—NF+_A=1+—HI%F
options under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended EARRQAIIRBEERETERE ZBREE
31 December 2018:

Cancelled/
Outstanding at Granted Exercised lapsed  Outstanding at
beginning of during during during end of
Participants Date of grant the year the year the year the year the year  Exercise price  Exercise period
RERE
SRE RHBH REDERTE  RERSRE  REREHE FHE/XH RERHRTE TRE 764
HKS
B
Eligible employees 26.7.2017 (Note) 186,200,000 - - - 186,200,000 0.123  26.7.2017-25.7.2022
REARER —T-t%+tA “E—+EtAZTRA
b V=) S
Z+1A
Other eligible participants 1.6.2017 (Note) 186,200,000 - - - 186,200,000 0.654  1.6.2017-31.5.2022
HagR2EE ZE-+ERA ZZ-+ERXA-H
—RB(H#) Z-E--FTR
=+—-A
Approximate
percentage to total
number of Company’s
shares in issue at end
of the year
EERRAT
BRTRAEHZ
BHEIL
Total under Share Option Scheme 372,400,000 - - - 372,400,000 19.99%

BREEET 28

Note: The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before 1 June ffit: REE - ZT—+F A HE_-_ZT—+F

2017 and 26 July 2017, the dates of grant of the share options, were +tAZ+HRB (BREXKLBE) A AR
HK$0.590 and HK$0.118 respectively. AR 2 W T (E 5 Al /0.5907% 7T 50.118
T e
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme is 558,667,948, which represents
approximately 29.99% of the total number of shares in issue of the

Company as at 28 March 2019 (i.e. 1,862,679,481 shares).

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option holdings disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the transactions disclosed under the heading “RELATED

PARTY TRANSACTIONS” as set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, there were no other contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business, to which the Company, its holding
company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisting at the end of the year or at anytime during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for service contracts, no contracts concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company were entered into or subsisting during the year ended

31 December 2018.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. None of these related party transactions during the
year constitutes a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, the interests and short positions of the
persons or corporations other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of

the SFO were as follows:

FERRREMATRERTR
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Long positions L3}
Shares and underlying shares of the Company AREARGREER G
Approximate
percentage of the
Number of issued share capital
issued ordinary of the Company
Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares (Note 1)
HEATERT
REZBHNBD L
£ 510 HEEHEE BERTEBERHE (HHaE1)
iReach Capital Fund Investment manager 142,070,000 7.63%
(Note 2)
REKIE (M$552)
Notes: Pt &L

1. The calculation of percentage figures is based on the relevant number of
shares as a percentage of the number of shares of the Company in issue
as at 31 December 2018.

2. According to the disclosure of interests notice filed by iReach Capital
Fund on 10 January 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, so far as is known
to the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, no persons or
corporations (other than Directors or chief executive of the Company)
had, or deemed or taken to have, interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, or who were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
number of any class of shares in issue of the Company, carrying the

rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for approximately 42% of the Group’s
consolidated revenue and aggregate revenue attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 86% of the

Group's consolidated revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 43% of the
Group's total purchases and aggregate purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 96% of the
Group's total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, or their
respective associates, or Shareholders owning more than 5% of the
Company's number of shares in issue had any beneficial interests in any

of the five largest customers or suppliers.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in

Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 21 to 44 of this annual

report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of business
operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a balance between
the quality and efficiency of our services and the minimization of
greenhouse gas emissions and environmental degradation. Accordingly,
the Group has taken a proactive approach to effect internal and external
communications by means of telephone, emails and conferences or such
other communication means which are efficient yet environmentally
friendly. Also, the Group are able to minimize physical travelling and

printing.

Details of the Company’s environmental policies and practices are set
out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 45

to 66 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and support are values
at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation and benefit
policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well as the individual
performance of employees. Other fringe benefits, mandatory provident
fund and share options are provided to retain loyal employees with the
aim to form a professional staff and management team that can bring

the Group to different levels of success.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with customers
has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s success. Our
business model is to maintain and build on our strong relationships
within our client base. Our mission is to provide the finest service to our
customers and the Group is constantly looking ways to improve customer
relations through enhanced services. Regarding Money Lending Business
and Securities Investment, the Group has no major suppliers. Whereas
regarding the other principal businesses, the Group has maintained good
relationship with the suppliers to ensure their continued support to the

Group in the foreseeable future.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,

operational and financial risks.

Strategic Risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge to the
external environments. The Group will invest in projects and investments
based on the strategic plan in order to cope with the market demand
and expectation. Given the rapid change of unforeseeable external
environments in the financial and equity markets, the Group is facing
significant strategic risks on its investments when changing the strategic

plans to adopt the unexpected changes of external environments.

Operational Risks

Management regularly reviews the Group's operations to ensure that
the Group's risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting from
fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance matters,

are adequately managed.

Financial Risks

The principal financial risks are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated

financial statements headed “FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT".
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EEEHE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS” on pages
70 to 73 of this annual report, the Company has not entered into any

equity-linked agreements during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors, secretary and other officers and
every auditor for the time being of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain
by or by reasons of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duties in their respective offices or otherwise in

relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against all losses and liabilities
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought

against Directors and other officers of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with any relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on

it.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2018.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (Chairman),
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung and Mr. Guo Zhenhui. The Audit Committee has
reviewed with the management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and discussed the risk management and internal
control systems and financial reporting matters including the review of

the audited results for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws, or the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the

year ended 31 December 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events after 31 December 2018 of the Group

are set out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EEEHE

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were

audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited.
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint

Elite Partners CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Hengxin

Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS of AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AMCO United
Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 219, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section to
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) issued by
the HKICPA, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BREXER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, RBIEEENHRELHE BREZEEAETS
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial #“ZREZEZFT—NF+ZA=+—HLFEDH

statements for the year ended 31 December 2018. These matters were 4SAFKBREATREENZTEB - BEELEEZE
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial AMBHRERLMIERERERIELEFEE "
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do eRLEEREFRERER -

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
BREEXREHE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets

BB R B EE R B E T

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had goodwill of
approximately HK$6.4 million which relates to the acquisition
of ACE Engineering Limited in 2016 (see Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements). Also, the Group had intangible
assets of approximately HK$5.0 million which relate to the
"Contracts backlog” and “Contractor registrations” as disclosed
in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements. The goodwill
and the intangible assets were allocated to the cash generating
unit for building contract works business (“CGU"). During the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had recognised
approximately HK$3.8 million impairment loss on goodwill and
no impairment on intangible assets.
RZE-NF+_HA=+—R0 ' BSEFER_Z—RFKE
BmIIRE R AR ZEEL R6,400,0008 T (Rixé M@K
BIEE16) < thoN - IR M BRI 7/AI%EE - EXEARH
[REKAH] R [#AZrHEM] 2 8|2 E E 425,000,000/ 7T
BELBREENIREBTARIRES CREELSEM ([
SEEEMN]) RBEZE-NF+_A=+—-HILFE &
B R B R EE18493,800,000 7T - & E I ERE -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEERPUAEERREE

Our major audit procedures in relation to the
impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets included the following:
EERBELRELEERENGETHNIEERER
B

e We discussed with management as to whether
there was any indicator of impairment.

EEREEEIWEL FEEMRELR-

e We obtained cash flow forecasts relating to the
CGU prepared by management and approved by
the directors of the Company.

ZENEH BERAEEERENRESIESH
ReELEU R RETRA -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BREERSEHE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets
(continued)

BERRELEER B ETE (&)

For the purpose of the impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible assets, the Group appointed an independent external
valuer to assess the recoverable amount of the CGU at the end of
the reporting period.

REBERBEVEENRENATNE BEXEEEEBELINGMGEE
RIAT IR S E A BN RS RN E S5 -

We had identified impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible assets as a key audit matter because significant
management judgement was required to determine the key
assumptions including estimated future income, operating
margins and discount rate, etc. and the amounts involved were
significant.
EECHAERENEENRETLI RBEREZEE RAR
ETHRBERBEMRRRA - EEMNHERMERESRAER
EBELREHE RIS REBEK-
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BB ER &

FEREMREE &)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEERPUNAEERREE

We discussed with management and independent
external valuer engaged by the Company
in relation to the methodology, basis and
assumptions used in arriving at the forecasts
(e.g. estimated sales growth rate and discount
rate etc.) to see whether the methodology and
assumptions used were reasonable.
EEREBRER EQARZENBUINLEER
A A BERTRRA AR A BERRR (§:

it 9 R R RBA TR ) LA T MR AR AR M TR
RBRETAE:

We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
reliance of the input data used.
BEAMETT NiE A EABIENEREE R
FEE

We evaluated the competency of the independent
external valuer taking into account its experience
and qualifications.

EERFA MBI EEMNERIEREK
EHE BT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BREERSEHE

Impairment of loan receivables

FEW B 589 6 18

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s loan receivables with
carrying amount of approximately HK$136.4 million and a
provision for impairment of loan receivables of approximately
HK$3.3 million was recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position, as set out in Note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements. The impairment losses on loan
receivables recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$1.0 million.

RZZBE-NF+_A=+—B HAWESHBHREMT210
#H BEEEMNEWERREELR136,400,0008 T ZERE
FOR BB A #3,300,0008 T E R BERENGA P BHMRRKE
R-BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—RHIEFE BEEEGEER
REMPER RN RRBERE RO R ERIEL &1,000,000

BT

The balance of provision for impairment of loan receivables
represents the management'’s best estimate at the year end date
of expected credit losses under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 9: Financial Instruments expected credit losses model.
EREFRERBERREEENFAAREEEYBREE
AIZE95E : B T AR E E IR R BTa B EE B RN RERS -
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FEREMREE &)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEERPUNAEERREE

Our major audit procedures relating to the impairment
assessment of loan receivables included the following:

ERERERRENEETHIEZELEFRRE:

e We tested the design and implementation of the
relevant key controls over the assessment and
monitoring of credit risks, and determination of
allowance for expected credit losses.
EEAHATE R EEEERRBEBERES R
ARER YETHRREEBERE-

e We understood and evaluated the modelling
methodologies for expected credit losses
measurement, assessed the reasonableness of the
model selection and key measurement parameters
determination.

ETRUNHEPREEFEAENRET A
AHERAERN S BT RERT S2BHET -

o For the historical information, we discussed with
management to understand the management’s
identification of significant increase in credit risk,
defaults and credit-impaired loans, corroborated

management’s explanation with supporting

evidence.

HNBEEH STEHREEEMMATRER
HEERR BOREEREERBEZLMEORE
Bl A EBREEEIEENME-



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BREERSEHE

Impairment of loan receivables (continued)

FEWE g E (F)

Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan receivables
has increased significantly since their initial recognition, and
considers (i) probability of default, loss given default and exposure
at default; (ii) significant increase in credit risk or a default;
and (iii) economic indicator for forward-looking information, to
calculate their expected credit losses.
EREFAEREFNEERRES B VS HER AR BEIE M
WERODEHIAE BHBEEAEREHAR  ()EERMBGE
HBEEEM: RGDATEEE RN BRBRUAGEREEREES
e

We had identified impairment assessment of loan receivables as a
key audit matter because the assessment of the recoverability of
loan receivables and recognition of loss allowance are inherently
subjective and requires significant management judgement, which
increases the risk of error or potential management bias.
EECHEWERNREN G ABEREZER RE KT E
WERNATWEEREREERERFEAIHN AFELE
ANEBEHE ENEEBEERFBENRR -
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FEREXREE &)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEERPUNAEERREE

o For forward-looking information, we assessed
the reasonableness of economic indicator
selection and assessed the reasonableness of the
estimation.

HRATEEER EETMEAREERNSE
SR EE R e

e We checked major data inputs used in the
expected credit losses model on sample basis to
the Group’s records.

EMEFTARE EEECHEBAREEBR
BRAAAN T EZREA -

e We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s
disclosures in relation to loan receivables included
in the consolidated financial statements.
FEE ESERGEMBWMEAMAEKRER
WHEBEORE -



86

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AN RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and

our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor’s report is Siu Jimmy with Practising Certificate Number P05898.

Elite Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
10/F., 8 Observatory Road

Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
REBEEkHEMEEKERE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-ZF—\F+-HA=+—HIFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—tF
B FHExT FHT
Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue WA 6,7 112,279 87,932
Cost of sales and services THE R R AR (88,712) (67,579)
Gross profit EF 23,567 20,353
Other income and other gains or losses £ b Yz 25 I E b Ug A 8% &5 18 8 (9,708) (128,203)
Distribution costs 2 $H R AR (235) (299)
Administrative expenses T (39,731) (39,757)
Finance costs s &M 9 (666) -
Loss before income tax BT RAIEE 10 (26,773) (147,906)
Income tax credit FRS i R 11 21 47
Loss for the year from REBERKEXEBZFERIE
continuing operations (26,752) (147,859)
Discontinued operation DRIEEEEK
Loss for the year from REDRIEEEER 2 FEEE
discontinued operation 34 - (71)
Loss and total comprehensive EAREEANELREEFER
income for the year attributable 2HBALRE
to owners of the Company (26,752) (147,930)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FEBEERHEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F Tt F
Bt 5 FHExT FHT
Loss and total comprehensive EARBEENELEEEBER
income for the year attributable 2HEHBALRE
to owners of the Company
— from continuing operations —REFBEREEER (26,752) (147,859)
— from discontinued operation —REERIEREED - (71)
(26,752) (147,930)
Loss per share BREE 12
Basic and diluted EARREE
— from continuing operations —REAFELEEE HK(1.44) centsiBfl |  HK(7.94) centsi L
— from discontinued operation —REERIEEEERS - -
HK(1.44) centsi&fl |  HK(7.94) centsiE ll




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBI &R

As at 31 December 2018 R=—ZF—NF+=FA=+—H

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—tF
B 5 FET FAET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER P 15 919 2,087
Goodwill kS 16 6,379 10,196
Intangible assets mVEE 17 5,016 5,056
12,314 17,339

Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 145 111
Held-for-trading investments FIEBEEKRE 20 25,218 35,223
Trade and other receivables B S REMEWFKIA 21 178,116 149,184
Tax recoverable A W B 4 18 - 78
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEEY 23 18,300 26,276
221,779 210,872
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables B 5 I H th JE - BUE 24 66,765 61,675
Tax payable JE A~ 358 18 — 19
66,765 61,694
Net current assets RBEEFRE 155,014 149,178
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERABAEE 167,328 166,517
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRSO R

As at 31 December 2018 R=—F—/\F+=F=+—A

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—tF
B 5 FET FAET

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bond payables JERE S 25 30,666 -
Deferred tax liability RLERIBEE 26 827 834
31,493 834
Net assets EEFE 135,835 165,683

EQUITY g

Share capital A& A 27 18,627 18,627
Reserves &% 117,208 147,056
Total equity EREE 135,835 165,683

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

28 March 2019.

On behalf of the Board
KREFE
Zhang Hengxin
RTE
Director

BF

KEFEN _T-AF=A -+ N\BHENEK
BT

Jia Minghui
EHHE
Director

BF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERRBEX

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-ZF—\F+-HA=+—HIFE

Share Share Capital Translation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Notes a & ¢) (Notes b & ¢) (Note ) (Note )
RA B4R E BAGEE EXfHE 2 B8R @t
57 57 T 57 7 57
(MsFake) (MizEbRe) (29) (MzEc)
As at 1 January 2017 “E—+F-A—H 18,627 402,912 - 1,591 (120,288) 302,842
Loss and total comprehensive EEE BREEKA
income for the year wE - - - - (147,930 (147,930
Recognition of equity-settled WRPBERESLE
share-based payment expenses 2 S FFX 2 B
(Note 29) (MiEF29) - - 10,771 - - 10,771
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+-A=ft—-H 18,627 402,912 10,771 1,591 (268,218) 165,683
Adjustment on initial application &XERAEEHHRE
of HKFRS 9 (Note 3(d)i)) EB|FO% 2 HE
(FI=E3(0)()) - - - - (2,684) (2,684)
Adjustment on initial application & RXERE BT KRS
of HKFRS 15 (Note 3(d)(ii)) HEHE155 2 K
(P EE3(d)ii)) - - - - (412) (412)
Adjusted balance as at RZZ-N\F-A—H
1 January 2018 ZIEARES 18,627 402,912 10,771 1,591 (271,314) 162,587
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEBENLZE
income for the year LoN-t ] - - - - (26,752) (26,752)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ-)N\F
+-A=t+—-H 18,627 402,912 10,771 1,591 (298,066) 135,835
Notes: (TEX
a)  The application of share premium account is governed by Section 40 of a) KO EERZEAZERE—NL/\—F2Q 7

the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

b)  As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the capital reserve comprised the
fair value of unexercised share options granted to eligible employees and
other eligible participants of the Group under the share option scheme
of the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting policy

adopted for share-based payments as further detailed in Note 4.15 to

the consolidated financial statements.

)  The total of these balances represents

statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZE-F—/\E+-F=+—HAULFE

BERER

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+F
Bt 5 FHExT FHT
Cash flows from operating activities REKZEITBHZHERE
Loss before income tax B P15 4% Al 5 18
— from continuing operations —REFELEER (26,773) (147,906)
— from discontinued operation —REERIEEEER 34 = (71)
Adjustments for: HTINEREL 2 HE:
Depreciation of property, ME - -BEREERE
plant and equipment 15 639 1,041
Amortisation of intangible asset BB EEE 17 40 241
Impairment loss of goodwill PEREEE 16 3,817 -
Net impairment loss on trade and B 5 Rk E A EWRIBRE
other receivables EiEFaE 21 1,141 -
Loss on sale of held-for-trading LEFEEEREZEHE
investments 8 - 59,097
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERTHEENBEE 2 W=
financial asset 8 - (3,360)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME BWERRHEZ
plant and equipment &8 (as) 8 528 (495)
Loss on change in fair value of FIEEBEREZAREBE
held-for-trading investments e EE 8 10,005 75,181
Share-based payment expenses R H BERZ X 29 - 10,771
Interest income FEBA (5) (5)
Interest expenses MBS H 666 -
Operating loss before working EELSRBA2RERE
capital changes (9,942) (5,506)
Increase in inventories FEEM (34) (100)
Purchases of held-for-trading BEEREEERE
investments - (9,984)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREEERE ZMENIEA
held-for-trading investments - 6,794
Increase in trade and other receivables E 5 I H th & W R I 35 A1 (33,169) (45,426)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 I H th JE 1~ FUIE L AN 5,090 31,415
Cash used in operations RETHHAZES (38,055) (22,807)
Hong Kong tax paid EREERIE (5) (80)
Hong Kong tax refund BARM 78 -
Net cash used in operating activities EETEEH 2 FEE (37,982) (22,887)

EFRERARQTF
2018 %
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_—F

—NF+=F=+—HALFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+F
B FHExT FHT
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHZHERE
Payment for purchase of property, TNBEEME BE &
plant and equipment ® 2 IE (2) (495)
Proceeds from disposal of PERHEENBEEZ
available-for-sale financial asset Fr 1S 3 H 18 - 18,660
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME BELER&EZ
plant and equipment Fr{S 8 3 514
Interest received B U F B 5 5
Net cash generated from investing KEEBEE R T FHE
activities 6 18,684
Cash flows from financing activity RERMETHZ2REERE
Proceeds from issue of bonds BITREFZFEHRIE 25 30,000 -
Net cash generated from financing BETEELZ RS FEE
activity 30,000 -
Net decrease in cash and ReRESEEYRDFE
cash equivalents (7,976) (4,203)
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—BzEERESEEY
at 1 January 26,276 30,479
Cash and cash equivalents R+-—A=+—-HBZEREK
at 31 December REZEY 18,300 26,276
Represented by: B
Cash and bank balances R e MIRTT4E 5 23 18,300 26,276
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HEZE-F—/\E+-F=+—HAULFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

AMCO United Holding Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability on 19 August 1994 as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda with its
shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 28 November 1996. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section

to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) are principally engaged in (i) manufacture and sale
of medical devices products; (i) manufacture and sale of plastic
moulding products; (iii) provision of construction services in building
construction, building maintenance and improvement works, project
management, renovation and decoration works; (iv) provision of

money lending; and (v) investment in securities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new standards, amendments and interpretation to
HKFRSs (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new and revised
HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), which are effective for the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period

beginning on 1 January 2018:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (and the related
Clarifications)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts
Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of Investment Property

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2014-2016 Cycle

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

Except as described in Note 3(d), the application of the new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has no material effect
on the Group's financial performance and position for the
current year or the disclosures set out in the consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective

The following new and revised HKFRSs have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group.

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9
Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8
Amendments to
HKAS 19
Amendments to
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKFRSs

IFRIC 23

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Leases'

Insurance Contracts®

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle'

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

2019, with earlier application permitted

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020, with earlier application permitted

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the

first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021, with earlier application permitted

mEe
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that

have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) anticipate that,
except as described below, the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and

the financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases”, introduces a single lease accounting model
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a
lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing
its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the
right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liabilities, and also
classifies cash payments of the lease liability into a principal
portion and an interest portion and presents them in the
consolidated statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use
asset and the lease liability are initially measured on a present
value basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly differently
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as

operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. R EBUMBBREERN([FH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) B REED]) (#)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that (b) ERCEMERMAKRERZH

have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its lease
as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for these

two types of leases differently.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately HK$2,178,000
as disclosed in Note 36(b). A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of
all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. The application
of the new requirements may result in changes in the
measurement, presentation and disclosure of the Group's
leases as indicated above which may have an impact on the
Group's results and financial position. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect until

a detailed review has been completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_—F

—NF+=F=+—HALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
which is a collective term for all individual HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing

the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at their fair value. The
measurement basis are fully explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

Other than subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") of which the functional currency is Renminbi
("RMB"), the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is the same

as the functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies

The Group has initially adopted HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” from 1 January 2018 and the Group has changed
its accounting policies as a result of adopting these standards.
The impact of the adoption of these standards and the nature
and effect of the changes in accounting policies are further

described below.

(i) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” that relate
to the classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, impairment for financial assets

and hedge accounting.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 9,
the Group has taken the exemption under HKFRS 9 not
to restate comparative information for prior period with
respect to classification and measurement (including
impairment) requirements. Differences in the carrying
amounts of financial assets resulting from the adoption
of HKFRS 9 are recognised in opening accumulated
losses as at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, the information
presented for 2017 has been presented, as previously

reported, under HKAS 39.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

MABEERSHBEEE 2

(d) SHBERES =)
(i) BEHBHEERFIH —

The amount by which each financial statement line item
is affected by the adoption of HKFRS 9 on the date of

initial application is shown as follows.

BIBETH &)

RERRBBH SPBHHRERZ
BEREENEMET LM BHRE
AIZESRMFETIRIAT

Carrying Effect of Carrying
amount as at adoption of amount as at
31 December HKFRS 9 1 January
2017 (note (B)) 2018*
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RpES
R-ZB—tF BHEBREEN KR=ZZT-NF
+=BA=+-H ELL A —H—H
ZREE (B %)) ZEREE*
FHT FHT FHT
Consolidated statement of FEMBMRRE (FHR)
financial position (extract)
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H fth fE WA 149,184 (2,684) 146,500
Accumulated losses (reserves) RETEE (FH) 268,218 2,684 270,902
*  The amounts in this column are before the adjustment RN eEIBEMAESY

for the effect of adoption of HKFRS 15, please see

note (ii) below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 3. RBEEERESTHEEE (&2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(d) SETEEREE (&)

(i) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued) (i) BEEHMBREERFEIN—
BBTAE)
(A) Classification and measurement (A) HHREHZ
From 1 January 2018, all recognised financial assets BE-_E-N\F—-H—HE"
that are within the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to Fir B & & 75 B 1% 4 5 ZE Rl
be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair 5% & & A 2 B M RE %

BEHRYARBAKE
ERMBEERHEAR

value on the basis of the Group’s business model for

managing the financial assets and the contractual

cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. BHEEANBRERER
HIZE R AR AR EE
tEe

Specifically: BREms:

REMREERA DR

- debt investments that are held within a —

business model whose objective is to collect EREMEBEXT
the contractual cash flows, and that have B DA R M
contractual cash flows that are solely payments e RHREERS

MENFINAEHNRE

of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding, are subsequently
measured at amortised cost;

debt investments that are held within a

MEWMEBRE H
RIZE ARG E

- REMNA/REKRRAE

business model whose objective is both to HReREREERE
collect the contractual cash flows and to sell BLEMEBREXT
the debt instruments, and that have contractual R U R BB
cash flows that are solely payments of e REAREERS

principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are subsequently measured at fair

MENTMAEHNES
MEWMEBRE H

~

value through other comprehensive income & B EH M2 E W
(“FVTOCI™); E/Aﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ(%
BEMEPERSEA

all other debt investments and equity
investments are subsequently measured at fair

value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

REEVIER])FTE:

- MARMEBRER

{%TEWEEJ)EJFEO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN

ACCOUNT

ING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

(A)

Classification and measurement (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group may make the
following irrevocable election/designation at initial

recognition of a financial asset:

— the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment that is not held for trading in other

comprehensive income; and

—  the Group may irrevocably designate a debt
investment that meets the amortised cost
or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an

accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 3. RBEEERESTHEEE (&2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) EETBEREE (@)

(i) BEBHBEHEERFEIN —
BETE (&)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

BRAE (&)

(A) Classification and measurement (continued) (A)

When a debt investment measured at FVTOCI is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment. In contrast, for an equity
investment designated as measured at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is not subsequently

reclassified to profit or loss.

E-ABBHMEE WS

BAREBEEINGTENE
BB R ILHERE - KR

HrmlathmRAn R
TR EREREIERED
HARBRZENOEE
Bamo R HREERE
BEMEPARGDERAAE
BB ENREKREM
= AR E MR E s
BRN R WA EER
BrgEMyEERR -

4\

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured HEemBEm A anhE

at amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to EmEmEEEA A EED]

impairment (see note (B) below). RAENEBITAAEN
WAE (R XXIEE®B)) ©

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has not had a significant RN E BB ®EERIZE9

effect on the Group’s accounting policies related to

financial liabilities.

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9), the Group has assessed which business
models apply to the financial assets held by the
Group and has classified its financial instruments

into the appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.

BHAKBEERMB AR
MEtBRLEEATE -

RZF-N\E—-H—-B (&
BB RELERNFEIRZE
REMBH) KNEBDF
mEMBRAEE A Y
HBEENEBRARE D
BHEBKITAZEE &5
BITE 3RS R FISR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

(A) Classification and measurement (continued)

The following table shows the original measurement
categories under HKAS 39 and the new
measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for each
class of the Group's financial assets and financial

liabilities as at 1 January 2018.

3. RREERETHEESE 2

(d) ETBERES (2)

(i) BEBHBEHEERFEIN —
BIBETH &)

(A)

S EEREE (E)

TRBRAAEEZEAMG
BERMBEBER-F
—NF-A-—BREEE
B ERE3REE 2 R

BEHENBELRREREY
% 5 2RI R & 5 2 Fh

Original New Original New
measurement measurement carrying carrying
category under category under amount under  amount under
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
HK$'000 HK$'000
RESEBETER RESBUHBERE REFBESHEN RIEEEBHB
HINEE2 EAFIREEZ HIFEEZ  HREELEIR
RENESSE FHESE RIEEE HEEZ2HEEE
FET FET
Financial assets:
MEEE:
Held-for-trading investments FVTPL FVTPL 35,223 35,223
FHEEERE BBERIE BRERIE
AR EEYEK B EESER
Trade and other receivables Amortised cost ~ Amortised cost 147,705 145,021
(Loans and
receivables)
B 5 I H i & WEIA BHERAN (B 1 58 PR AR
FEWFRIE)
Cash and cash equivalents Amortised cost  Amortised cost 26,276 26,276
(Loans and
receivables)
ReRFEEEY BHKA (BERE B RAR
FEURIE)
209,204 206,520
Financial liabilities:
MiEEE:
Trade and other payables Amortised cost ~ Amortised cost 61,675 61,675

g5 R E A AN IR

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

KR

B SRR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 3. RBEEERESTHEEE (&2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (d) SETEHEEE (#)
(i) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued) () BEEBYBEHEEREIN —
BHETA (&)
(A) Classification and measurement (continued) (A) DEREZE (#E)
The following table reconciles the carrying amounts TRETIR-_ZE—-NF—
of financial assets at amortised cost under HKAS 39 A—RABEZEEVBHR
to the carrying amounts under HKFRS 9 on transition HAER BRI IH K
to HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018. RINEZWMBEEERESR

BEENFEIVREEZ
FRHERREER BV ®
SREAIFSREE 2 RHEE

2 EREER o
Original New
carrying carrying
amount under Remeasurement amount under
HKAS 39 (note (B)) HKFRS 9
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

REEBET

B 395K REEBME
EEZRE Bt E & RSO
H{E (MIsE@®)) HEBEZHEEE
FAT FAT FAT
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H {th fE Y 3518 147,705 (2,684) 145,021
Cash and cash equivalents R&KRIREEEY 26,276 - 26,276
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

(B)

Impairment

The impairment of financial assets has changed
from the incurred loss model under HKAS 39 to
the expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9.
Under the new expected loss approach, it is no
longer necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Impairment is made
on the expected credit losses, which are the present
value of the cash shortfalls over the expected life of
the financial assets. The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with debt instruments carried at amortised cost
or FVTOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant

increase in credit risk.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

Annual Report 2018

3. RREERETHEESE 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

(B)

Impairment (continued)

For trade and retention receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires lifetime expected losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group's historical default
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current

as well as the forecast direction of conditions.

For other financial assets measured at amortised

cost (i.e. loan receivables, other deposits, other
receivables and bank balances), the expected credit
losses are based on 12-month expected losses and
there had been no significant increase in credit risk

since initial recognition.

REMBRRME

NEFZA=+—HIFE

3. RAEERETHERER (&)

(d) SHBXES =)
(i) BEBHEERFIN —

BETE (&)
(B) JE (%)
BhE 5 e U R IE K e U AR

Bems AEEERAER
B 7% S & E RS2 95% /o FF AN
ETE i BR 2 HITE
HEBRAR B RXERER
FIARER - NREEDET
ERNAKEBEROLR
AHEMBEERE WIREE
%A MEREE = & B AT Al
TR R R R SR

PIRE K ARG ENE M
MBEE(MEKRER H
1ﬁiﬁﬁ‘ﬁ1ﬁﬁ§ﬂﬁlmlﬁ)§iﬁﬂ
T ms BAREES
BIHERTZ@EAKTES
EBE ARERERR F
B\ 3 AR IR AN o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

(B)

Impairment (continued)

Applying the expected credit loss model resulted
in the recognition of additional impairment for the
Group's trade and other receivables on 1 January

2018 as follows:

3. RREERETHEESE 2

(d) ETBERES (2)

(i) BEBHBEHEERFEIN —
BIBETH &)
(B) i1 (#&)

R-Z—NE—A—B#E

NEHEEEREREYR

RAEENE 5 M E M E
WOSRIRHE R SMRLE - A58

mF
HK$'000
FET
Loss allowance at 31 December 2017 RIBEEB G ERE395
under HKAS 39 RZFE—tF+-_A=1+—B2
B R B -
Additional impairment recognised RZZBE-NF-—HA—-—BRH¥RZ
at 1 January 2018 FHINRE 2,684
Loss allowance at 1 January 2018 RIREE BB REER LR
under HKFRS 9 (Note 21(iii) & (iv))) R-F-NE—-A—-HZEA
B (B 213 R (iv)) 2,684

The additional impairment is recognised in
accumulated losses, resulting in a decrease in
trade and other receivables of approximately
HK$2,684,000 and increase in accumulated losses of

approximately HK$2,684,000 as at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

3. RAEERETHERER (&)

(d) EtBERES (2)

(ii) HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with (i) BEEBUEREERFEI55 —

Customers

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts” and related Interpretations
in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with

customers.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the modified
transitional provisions whereby the effects of adopting
HKFRS 15 for uncompleted contracts with customers
as at 31 December 2017 are adjusted to the opening
accumulated losses as at 1 January 2018 and prior
period comparatives are not restated. Accordingly, the
information presented for 2017 has been presented,
as previously reported, under HKAS 18, HKAS 11 and

related Interpretations.

KEEFEHZHA

REREBEPENZWAETT
ABRE - BEMBHRELERES
SR BB T FE 185 [
Al BB ENENR[EE
BH RiEmEaE-

RIEBE BB REERFE 1558
BEME AEEDEEER
KASET B MRS Btk R
—T—+F+-A=+—HEFR
P2 RTERE KRBT EA R
SEBFEISHE P EEES
*AE*H*EZ%W%?%E
REH AR MBTHEZ L&
BFUW\EES Al —F—+
FZ2IERTIRBABREBES
g ERIFI18% BB KR
B RAAERE 2 WA T
I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

The amount by which each financial statement line item
is affected by the adoption of HKFRS 15 on the date of

initial application is shown as follows.

MABEERSHBEEE 2

(d) ETBERES (2)

(i) BEYBEHREERF159 —
KEEFSHZHA (&)
REREMEH BBRR2&
TE& BRI E B RS
F1SRAFEFHINT -

Carrying Carrying
amount as at Effect of amount as at
31 December adoption of 1 January
2017 HKFRS 15 2018*
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=-B—+t&F MBRE R-ZZ-N\F
+=-—A=+—-H AR ZE155% —B—H
ZIEEE X ZIREE*
FHT FHT FHT
Consolidated statement of HEMBERAER (FHER)
financial position (extract)
Trade and other receivables B 5 RhE A EWRFKIA 149,184 (412) 148,772
Accumulated losses (reserves) RETEE (FH) 268,218 412 268,630

* The amounts in this column are before the adjustment
for the effect of adoption of HKFRS 9, please see note (i)

above.

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining when and how much to recognise revenue
through a 5-step approach: (1) identify the contract(s)
with a customer; (2) identify the performance obligations
in the contract; (3) determine the transaction price;
(4) allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation; and (5) recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when control
of the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the

same.

From 1 January 2018, revenue is recognised when or as
the control of the good or service is transferred to the
customer. Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, control of the good
or service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the good or service is transferred over

time if the Group's performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and consumed

simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the Group performs; or

—  does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right

to payment for performance completed to date.

3. RAEERETHERER (&)

(d) SHBXES =)
(i) BEBHEHREERFEIS5 —

KEEFEHNZHKA (#)

B4 E E8 — RS MR
(F—HEmARE) L — KT
ARBAER B AR E @R -

B N\F—-A—8& KA

RERSIRBOIEHEEBE
B R R - & & AR 15 /0 12 il
BRE—BREBNERE M
LT BURR A KK 153
AREHEERRTE -MER
B LB A BRI B T 5 R
A1 5 ok BR 7% B 422 Il RE TE — R B
DAk ¥

Eﬂ

o

S

/I

z

&
ES

mnt

R

- RE#2¥NE BEFRE

Y BY B #E P AR R A 2=

- EEMERRNANEEED
BREPEHNEE: X

- AXEBETEELERAUE
RAZNEE BASEA
BHENRRAESE R
FX B JE 40 88 20 Y R X8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
* e B 3R 3k MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (continued)

If control of the good or service transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the good or service.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on one of
the following methods that best depicts the Group’s

performance in satisfying the performance obligation:

—  output method: direct measurements of the value
transferred by the Group to the customer relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the

contract; or

— input method: the Group's efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance obligation relative to

the total expected inputs.

The Group recognises revenue from manufacture and
sale of medical devices products and plastic moulding
products. Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised
at a point in time when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Payments received in advance that are related to sales of
goods not yet delivered to customers are deferred and
recognised as contract liabilities. Revenue is recognised

when the goods are delivered to the customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 3. RBEEERESTHEEE (&2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
d) EstBEEE 2
(i) BEEOBEREERE15% —

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (continued)

The Group recognises revenue from construction
contracts for provision of construction services in building
construction, building maintenance and improvement
works, project management, renovation and decoration
works. The Group provides the building contract work
on customers’ sites which creates or enhances an asset
that the customers control as the Group performs and
therefore recognises revenue from the construction
contracts over time. The Group considers that the output
method by reference to the progress certificate issued
is an appropriate measure of the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
under HKFRS 15. However, construction costs that relate
to satisfying the performance obligation are recognised
in profit or loss based on the actual costs incurred under
guidance of HKFRS 15, which is different from the
prior accounting policy of the Group to recognise the
construction costs in profit or loss by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of
the reporting period as measured by the proportion that
the value of work performed to date to the estimated
total contract value. Costs to fulfill a contract is not
material. As a consequence, construction costs incurred
previously included in trade and other receivables
was recognised in accumulated losses, resulting in a
decrease in trade and other receivables of approximately
HK$412,000 and increase in accumulated losses of

approximately HK$412,000 as at 1 January 2018.

KEEFEHNZHKA (#)

REBERREEFERE BFE
ERHEIR EEERE £
KT HE 7 BERBER
BESHRAN -AEEBREFH
BRHEFABIR BEARK
N A EEBAOR BT T
BE E R E L TR — R A
REEEHRA -AEEREBZ
EE NS EERN S LA AR
BEBMBRELENS15RAE
ERRBEHNETREENEE
Ee R e BRAOEEERE
EEERATRBEEBMBRE
R E155RIESI AN EREEK
REBHEFER EHAEER
EEHBETR  BESFTBE
T2 EREMRTKELEB
BIWWIRIES BIEF RO TIR(E
B RS LB EBE IR
AEUNERERRERR B
TERBRARLTEKX - FH
TR AE P K& H fh fE Y 3B
2 BEERERATIER SR
BE BRER-_T—N\F—H—
HE S & fih & W KIE R 4
412,000/ 7T - i R 51 & 8 & N
#7412,000/5 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
* e B 3R 3k MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (continued)

While the Group also recognises loan interest income as
revenue, the interest income is not under the scope of

HKFRS 15.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts with
a significant financing component where the period
between the transfer of the promised good or service to
the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one
year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of
the transaction prices for the effects of the time value of

money.

Accordingly, the adoption of HKFRS 15 has not had a
significant impact on the timing and amount of revenue

recognition by the Group.

For the disaggregation of revenue under HKFRS 15,
the Group considers it is consistent with the revenue
information that is disclosed for each reportable segment

under HKFRS 8 "“Operating Segments” (see Note 6).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 3. RBEEERESTHEEE (&2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (d) SETEHEES 2)

(i) HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with (i) BEEYBEREERE15% —
Customers (continued) KREFEFGHZHA (&)
The amount by which each financial statement line item N ERBEBM B mELRER
is affected in the current year and year to date by the F5% 2 FIEMM B B2 2R
application of HKFRS 15 resulting from the recognition BN AEEAFEREES
of construction costs as explained in above as compared SHEMBRREENSBHR
to HKAS 11 that was previously in effect before the &R BB I 7% 3R 5 2 BI 5 1 SR R
adoption of HKFRS 15 is as follows: REEAA (0 EXEE) M

g EmT

As at 31 December 2018
R-ZB-NFE+=B=+—8

Results
without Effect of
adoption of adoption of Results as
HKRS 15 HKFRS 15 reported
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

REME B RABBYE
BBHEER HEERFI55

FISH 2 HE Z% wEHE
FHET FHET FET
Consolidated statement of FEMBMRRE ()
financial position (extract)
Trade and other payables B 5 I H th fE < 58
(Note) (Htzz) (66,996) 231 (66,765)
Accumulated losses (reserves) R EE (FE) 298,297 (231) 298,066

Year ended 31 December 2018
BE-Z-N\F+-A=+—-HLEFE

Results
without Effect of
adoption of adoption of Results as
HKRS 15 HKFRS 15 reported
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

REAEE RABBYE
MBHEER HEERF155

F15E 2 8B 2% mEHE
FHT FHT FHT
Consolidated statement of FEBRERHEMEZE
profit or loss and Wik (FE)
other comprehensive
income (extract)
Cost of sales and services #HE R R A 89,355 (643) 88,712
Note: The adjustment represented amounts due to Kiat: ZARBREEESHE
customers for contract works recognised under AENRENEPEHT
HKAS 11, please refer to Note 4.11 for details. BRIE FEB2HEME
4.11 -
SREERERAT

-
2018 F 3§ 119
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

4.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during a
financial year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date

fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities

were disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME )

POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Subsidiaries 4.2 B A F]

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of

these elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.

4.3 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is initially
recognised at cost being the excess of the aggregate

consideration transferred over the fair value of identifiable

4.3

B8 X B A AN X B R S E AT (R 2 LA
ZHEBRET - MABAT2EH =T
AR RBEGWIRE T A E R
REDTEREND ARSI ZZIHERE
H RO RERKEN: RAERE
BAOFEBZENEOHR - NEETER
ERBERE A B b T = AT
WEE G EHTEEGE-

RARRZHBARRER RIEQ
A Z KB TIARAIG Rt REE R
(WA ) Pk - KR RHR B W K JE M A
BEESHBRRZEEA K-

]

Wi —HEEEL 2 BB FIRK
A(AFEERELBEBRMEE
AEBEENMAEZBBZAAE

g

assets acquired and liabilities assumed. BzEn)ER-
Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment PER K AR REHREE BT -

losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
("CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from

the synergies of the acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.3 Goodwill (continued)

A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount (see Note 4.16) and whenever there is an indication

that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual
asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent

periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME )

POLICIES (continued)

4.4 Property, plant and equipment 4.4 Y¥- -BERFRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are recognised as an expense in profit or loss

during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The useful lives are as follows:

ME- -BERRBIERARBRG
ERRFTRERRK-

ME - BEMNBRBIRABRERBE
EBRKEZERE EREIEZKA-

=

WEREERE A RGBS

MARER MZEB ZKARER
ERf B T ERERRATFAEEZ
FHEXER S - BBELEE (WE
R -BEMN ZREESRIEFER-
FrA MR (I E RRE)RESE
Z AR AR R R R

an>
EY(V

‘“HH

Y R K 3R R ET A AR AR AR
BRE SRR TE DU S A A (30
PRIEEAFIGAEE) - Al (5 FAF 8 - Bk
BEITERZTENEREHRR
AW E RER AR AR AF
HAGOT

Plant and machinery 5 - 10 years 57 Be e 28 52104
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years R HE R 54
Motor vehicles 3 - 5 years RE 3E54F
ERERERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, or

where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on

disposal.

4.5 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating

leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and is
calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of the
lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance owed to

the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of

the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME )

POLICIES (continued)
46 B EE
(a) WiIBEZHBIEEE

4.6 Intangible assets

(a) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be finite or indefinite. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated impairment

losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible asset with indefinite useful lives is not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a

prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.6 Intangible assets (continued)

(b) Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired (see Note 4.16). Intangible assets with
indefinite lives are tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be
impaired by comparing their carrying amounts with
their recoverable amounts (see Note 4.16). When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount; however, the carrying
amount should not be increased above the lower of
its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that
would have been resulted had no impairment loss been

recognised for the asset in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME )

POLICIES (continued)
47 BT A

4.7 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL

are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. A regular
way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset
that requires delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured

in th
depe

Debt

eir entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,

nding on the classification of the financial assets.

instruments that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

Debt

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order

to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

instruments that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial

assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently

measured at FVTPL.

Despite the foregoing, the Group may make the following
irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a

financial asset:

— the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
instrument that is not held for trading in other

comprehensive income; and

— the Group may irrevocably designate a debt
instrument that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI
criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates

or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
4.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other
hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting

for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently
at amortised cost and at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see “Impairment” below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset.
If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest

rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at

FVTPL. Specifically:

—  Investments in equity instruments are classified as
at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is not held for trading as at FVTOCI

on initial recognition.

—  Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as
at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet
either the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI
criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases. The Group has

not designated any debt instruments as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
* e B 3R 3k MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
4.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income under “Other income and other
gains or losses”. Fair value is determined in the manner

described in Note 38.

Impairment

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses ("ECL") on investments in debt instruments
that are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, and
contract assets under HKFRS 15. No impairment loss is
recognised for investments in equity instruments. The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition of the respective financial instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME )

POLICIES (continued)
47 BRI R #)
BBEE (&)
(A) B=F—)\F—H—ALEH

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Impairment (continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The expected credit losses
on these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group's historical default experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast

direction of conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other
hand, the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument

at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Impairment (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that

will

result from all possible default events over the

expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast,

12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that

is expected to result from default events on a financial

instrument that are possible within 12 months after the

reporting date.

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort. Forward-looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries
in which the Group's debtors operate as well as
consideration of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’'s core

operations.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

Annual Report 2018

4. FESTTHEBRE 2)

4.7 i T H (&)
BIBEE (&)

A) B-FE-NF—H—-HEEH

ZBE (&)
R 1E (&)

2HFAREEBREVEIAR
B FEBMAMRE TR =M
EEMEREEEBBE M+ =@
AESEEBEERINEEAR
H1R12ME 8 AR IS T AR RE A4
HENFEHEENED 2HEY

EEER-

() EERREAEE

RFFE B V)16 7 B 1R M 7%
TANGEERBRZE AR
KEANES - AR E G IR W
SRPMBITAELEED
B | B B2 ) 4R W BR H R B
BITARAZELRONER &
TR R N R A
EZEAEAFEEBEIEN
TENREUHEM BHEBHE
BBELEFREBZRA
K5 71 B AT JE 15 & AT RE 1%
BRI BRBTIEIEE R
BRANEEEBARET
YRR AT S A R ER
SEZLEBHBNER
RIERAIEEENNEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Impairment (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into

account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external or internal

credit rating (if available);

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a financial
instrument, e.g. credit spread or the length of
time or the extent to which the fair value of a
financial asset has been less than its amortised

cost;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in

the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration

in the operating results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other

financial instruments of the same debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Impairment (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 90 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the
financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if the financial
instrument has a low risk of default, the debtor has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term, and adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the

debtor to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

Annual Report 2018

4. FESTTHEBRE 2)

4.7 i T H (&)

MBEE (&)

A) HB=F—/NF—H—HEHF
ZBE (&)
R 1E (&)

U]

EERBR AR N (&)

Tim LA E SR MM AR
SERE - A # R EH
HEiE0R  RIMBEEZ(E
ERE BB ERARE
RIGEMN - HEAEEHER S
BRI EERKRABRILIE
ot - RIVERE

BERLARE ERHE
PRy HETARAERSE
BEREEERR AKEE
BRMBETEZERERR
B ) 54 1 58 A SR I R K 1R
EA-EATERT B
TESWRHATEREABRK
EERE MBIARAR
EEORR: EFAERS
ZRENBETEHZAKHR
EREEE MEBEMEE
REZERHAFEEE A
BEERMEREES AR
TENREREEEZHE

Ik

b

N



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Impairment (continued)

(ii)

Definition of default

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay the Group in full, without
taking into account any collaterals or other credit

enhancements held by the Group.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 180 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion

is appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_—F

—NF+=F=+—HALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financia

| assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Impa

(iii)

irment (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the

following events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

the borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past

due event;

- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Impairment (continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to the Group’s recovery
procedures. Any recoveries made are recognised in

profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit

losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a
function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information as described above. As for the exposure
at default, this is represented by the assets’ gross

carrying amount at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_—F

—NF+=F=+—HALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (continued)

Impa

(v)

irment (continued)

Measurement and recognition of expected credit

losses (continued)

The expected credit loss is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the original

effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines
at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month

ECL at the current reporting date.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve,
and does not reduce the carrying amount of the

financial asset in the statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. FESTHHREBRE »)

47 Bi¥E T B (&)
BIBEE (#)

B) R-F-NF—H—HFERH

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Financial assets are classified into the following categories
— financial assets at FVTPL, held-to-maturity investments,
available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the

time of initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months;

otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income under “Other income and other gains or losses”.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in

Note 38.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or

financial assets at FVTPL.

Dividends on AFS equity instrument are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the

dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period

(see “Impairment of financial assets” below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables,
retention receivables, loan receivables, deposits and other
receivables and cash and bank balances) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment (see “Impairment of financial assets”

below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the investment have been affected. Objective evidence of

impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.

4. FESTHHREBRE »)

47 Bi¥E T B (&)
BIBEE (#)

(B)

R-F—NF—H—HFIEH
HYBF ()

B EENRE
RERESHRFEMBEE B
BARBERERIIGNHEE
BN BB EARMETR - i
BEBREERHEAN -HAZA
RERERTBEEERELENSE
- RENBFRKRESRED
XYE ARBEERA/ER
B RENTBRFRAIERRE:

5

- BOARXRZHEFHESE
BRI R

- BEH-mMRASENEEF
B AE

- &SN A RE IR = ok i 1T B
THEM Bk

- RYBEERMBREHM
REBBTIG -

143



144

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
* e B 3R 3k MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
4.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 30 to 90 days, and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that

correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the

financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent

periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME )

POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued) 47 BT R (&)

Financial assets (continued) BHBEE (#)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (continued) B) RZF—-NF—H—HFIEH
BB (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) HEEERE (&)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or

loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value and
financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at

fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured to reflect the
fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised

in profit or loss for the year.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other
payables and bond payables, are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The

related interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation

process.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. FESTHHREBRE »)

47 Bi¥E T B (&)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset or to the amortised cost of the financial

liability.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially

all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another

party.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.
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mEMBRMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.8 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at

the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their designated location. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.

4.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand
deposits with banks, short-term deposits with bank with
original maturities of three months or less, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and at bank and
short-term investments as defined above, net of outstanding

bank overdrafts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME )

POLICIES (continued)
4.10 Ug A FERR

4.10 Revenue recognition

Revenue is income arising from the sales of goods and the
provision of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s

business.

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the good
or service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised good or

service to the customer.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised at a point in
time when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered to the customers and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products. A receivable is recognised by the
Group when the products are delivered to the customer which
represents the point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional for which only the passage of time
is required before payment is due. Payments received in
advance that are related to sales of goods not yet delivered to
customers are deferred and recognised as contract liabilities.
Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered to the

customers.

In the comparative period, revenue from the sales of goods
is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which is at the time of delivery and the title is passed to

customer.

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from
construction contracts is described in the accounting policy for

construction contracts below.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal

outstanding at the applicable interest rate.
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mEMBRMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.11 Construction contracts

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised over time
when the Group’s contract work creates or enhances an asset
that the customers control as the Group performs under the

contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation under the contract
using the output method of direct measurement of the
value transferred by the Group to the customer relative to
the remaining work promised under the contract based on
progress certificate issued. Contract costs qualify as costs to
fulfil a contract will be recognised as an asset to be amortised
on a systematic basis with the transfer to the customer of the
contract work to which the asset relates, while contract costs
that related to satisfy the performance obligation under the
contract are expensed as incurred. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are only recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in

the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

In the comparative period, when the outcome of a
construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and
costs are recognised with reference to the stage of completion
of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, as
measured by the proportion that the value of work carried
out during the year. Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included to the extent that the amount

can be measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME )

POLICIES (continued)
ANMBEEN (&)

4.11 Construction contracts (continued)

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred. When it is probable
that estimated total contract costs will exceed estimated
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.

A receivable is recognised by the Group when the Group
becomes entitled to invoice based on the progress certificate
issued by the customer which represents the point in time at
which the right to consideration becomes unconditional for
which only the passage of time is required before payment is
due. A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the contract,
e.g. retention receivables. Contract assets are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional. A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group recognises the

related revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.11 Construction contracts (continued)

In the comparative period, when contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is shown as an amount due
from customers for contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown
as an amount due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position, as a liability,
under trade and other payables. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customers are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under trade

and other receivables.

4.12Income taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current

and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of the reporting period.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME )

POLICIES (continued)
412 FREB (&)

4.12 Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amount in the financial statements. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.13 Foreign currency

—NF+=F=+—HALFE

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies other
than the currency of the primary economic environment in
which they operate (“functional currency”) are recorded at
the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency

are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the rates on the dates of transactions
are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
translation reserve. Exchange differences recognised in profit
or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on the
translation of long-term monetary items forming part of the
Group's net investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and accumulated

in equity as translation reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. FESTHHREBRE »)

4.13 Foreign currency (continued) 4.13 SN ()

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the translation reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to

profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised

in the translation reserve.

4.14Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short-term employee benefits are recognised in the

year when the employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the services

are rendered by the employees.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

—NF+=F=+—HALFE

4.15Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are

measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair
value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out
in Note 29. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the probability

that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to equity) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained

profits/accumulated losses).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME )

POLICIES (continued)
415 AR BEBR 2R (&)

4.15Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted. The fair value of
the goods or services received are recognised as expenses, with
a corresponding increase in equity (capital reserve), when the
Group obtains the goods or when the counterparties render
services, unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as

assets.

4.16 Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the following assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously recognised

no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; and

— intangible assets.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss

is recognised as an expense immediately.
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mEMBRMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.16 Impairment of other assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

4.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require a
substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Income
earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are

incurred.

4.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable
will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be

reasonably estimated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continuead)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

4.19 Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the

Group or the Company’s parent.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.19 Related parties (continued)

(b) Ane

cond

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

ntity is related to the Group if any of the following
itions apply:

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary

and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity

related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.19 Related parties (continued)

(b)

(continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence

over the entity or is a member of key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is

a part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or to the Company's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
4.20 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the chief operating
decision-maker i.e. the most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and

geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.

4.21 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographic
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with

a view to resale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME )

POLICIES (continued)
4.21 Discontinued operations (continued)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, which comprises
the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation and
the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to
fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or

disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies which are
described in Note 4, the Directors are required to make estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods

if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Assessment of impairment of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating
conditions specific to the Group that may lead to impairment of
assets. When an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is determined. Value in use calculations performed
in assessing recoverable amounts incorporate a number of key
estimates and assumptions about future events, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making these key estimates and judgements, the Directors take
into consideration assumptions that are mainly based on the market
conditions existing at the reporting dates and appropriate market

and discount rates.

These estimates are regularly compared to actual market data and

actual transactions entered into by the Group.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The management of the Group determines the estimated useful
lives and consequently the related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment. Management will increase the depreciation charges
when useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, it will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives. Periodic review may result in a change in

useful lives and therefore the depreciation expenses in future years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The loss allowances for ECL of trade and other receivables are
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates
in determining whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition and in calculating the amount
of ECL. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking information at the end of each reporting period.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in current conditions and forward looking
information are analysed. The estimate of ECL is sensitive to the
changes in circumstances and of forecast conditions. Changes
in these assumptions can result in different levels of allowances.
The Group’s historical default experience and forecast conditions
may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about ECL on the Group's trade and other

receivables is disclosed in Note 21.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 4.3. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined
based on value in use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates about future cash flows, growth rates and discount
rates. In the process of estimating expected future cash flows,
management makes assumptions about future revenues and profits.
These assumptions relate to future events and circumstances, the
actual results may vary and may cause a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of goodwill within the next financial year.
Determining the appropriate discount rate involves estimating the
appropriate adjustment for market risk and for asset specific risk

factors.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Construction contracts

As explained in accounting policy in Note 4.11, revenue recognition
on a project is dependent on management’s estimation of the
total outcome of the construction contracts, with reference to the
progress certificate issued. Significant judgement is required in
estimating the total outcome of the contract including the contract
revenue, contract costs and variation work which are based on
the Group's past experience and the nature of the contract work
undertaken. The Group reviews and revises the estimates of

contract revenue, contract costs and variation orders, prepared for

each construction contract as the contract progresses.

6. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports

reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to

make strategic decisions.

The Group has five (2017: six) reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different products
and services and requires different business strategies. The following

summary describes the operations in each of the Group's reportable

segments:

(1) Manufacture and sale of medical devices products (“Medical

Devices Business”);

(2) Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products (”Plastic

Moulding Business”);
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(3) Provision of construction services in building construction,
building maintenance and improvement works, project
management, renovation and decoration works (“Building

Contract Works Business”);

(4) Provision of money lending (“Money Lending Business”); and

(5) Investment in securities (“Securities Investment”).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the business segment
for the provision of public relations services (“PR Business”) was
discontinued effective from 1 April 2017. Information about this

discontinued segment is disclosed in Note 34.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are priced with reference to
prices charged to external parties for similar products. Corporate
revenue and expenses are not allocated to the operating segments
as they are not included in the measure of the segments’ profit/loss
that is used by the chief operating decision-maker for assessment

of segment performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. /]-J\%Bﬁ%(%%)
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by T AREERAIREDBE D 2 WA R
reportable segment: ES- SR
(a) Business segments (a) ¥85Y

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z—-\F+=-A=+—HLHEF

E

Building
Medical Plastic Contract Money
Devices Moulding Works Lending Securities
Business Business Business Business  Investment Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BR BB BFREE
REEYR HEEE IRER HEEK EHERE B
TER TER TER TER FTER FER
Revenue from external customers  E4MEEE YA 47,284 1,660 54,592 8,743 - 112,279
Reportable segment revenue DE RN 47,284 1,660 54,592 8,743 - 112,279
Timing of revenue recognition R AR B ]
At a point in time F-EEY 47,284 1,660 - - - 48,944
Over time —BEEA - - 54,592 8,743 - 63,335
47,284 1,660 54,592 8,743 - 112,279
Reportable segment profit/(loss) A& S EEF,/
(E#&) 5,329 (361) (4,984) 7,414 (10,007) (2,609)
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 3,389 614 40,029 136,487 31,997 212,516
Reportable segment liabilities ARESHEE (10,081) (790)  (17,103)  (28,799) = (56,773)
Amounts included in HENSEHN,/
the measure of segment (BB)IHE
profit/(loss) or segment assets BEGNAZEE
Interest income FEMA = 2 = 3 = 5
Depreciation and amortisation WEREE - (397) (244) - = (641)
Impairment loss on goodwill BERESE = = (3,817) = = (3,817)
Net impairment loss on trade and 5 R E bW E
other receivables ZREBEFE - - (103) (1,038) = (1,141)
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e BHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE
DEEE (@)
(a) X #)

HE_ZT—+tF+_A=T—HILF

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6.
(a) Business segments (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

=s
X
Discontinued
operation
Continuing operations (Note 34)
BAILEESR
HEEEEE & (Mi5E34)
Building
Medical Plastic Contract Money
Devices Moulding Works Lending Securities
Business Business Business Business Investment Sub-total PR Business Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
£ 2B EFHEE
HRER BA%H IR%K HE£E FrRE g N ES 2%
TEn TEL Thn TEx T TEL TAL TEn
Revenue from external customers  RESMBRPMA 38,023 1938 41,848 6,123 - 87,932 - 87,932
Reportable segment revenue TRESPRA 38,03 1,938 41,848 6,123 - 87,932 - 87,932
Reportable segment profitfloss) — M&E5 &7/ (H58) 2,941 (326) (117) 5758 (134371) (126,115) (1) (126,186)
Reportable segment assets AREFBEE 3434 890 43,645 110,170 42,002 200,141 - 200,141
Reportable segment liabilities TREFBEE (7,379) (610) (14,827) (28,799) (19) (51,634) - (51,634)
Amounts included in the measure  EHEAHEF/ (HB) 5
of seqment profit/loss) or FHEEHALEE
segment assets
Interest income FMEKA - 1 - 2 - 3 - 3
Depreciation and amortisation REREH ) (397) (407) - - (806) 3) (809)
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment FEhE 170 - 65 - - 235 - 235
Additions to non-current assets ~ REJEREEE - - 493 - - 493 - 493
ERERBRLA
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment

DEIRE (#)

(b) AIHREDHBWA B -BEE

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities REEBEZHIE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
—2-N% —E—t%
FHERT FET
Revenue N
Reportable segment revenue & o FUA 112,279 87,932
Consolidated revenue from continuing REBEBELEEB2RA
operations WA 112,279 87,932
Loss before income tax and MRS HABER
discontinued operation BRIEREEK
Reportable segment loss AIREDIEIE (2,609) (126,186)
Segment loss from discontinued REDKRIEREEHF
operation o E R - 71
Finance costs 81 7% 5 A (666) -
Unallocated corporate income Ao E2BRA 7 5,376
Unallocated corporate expenses RO EBRX (23,505) (27,167)
Consolidated loss before income tax REFELSEEKZ
from continuing operations MRIFSBAISGEER (26,773) (147,906)
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 212,516 200,141
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkFEZEY 18,300 26,276
Unallocated corporate assets ROEEEBEE 3,277 1,794
Consolidated total assets REBEE 234,093 228,211
Liabilities a8&
Segment liabilities DEEE 56,773 51,634
Bond payables JE -1 (& 55 30,666 -
Unallocated corporate liabilities RO EEERE 10,819 10,894
Consolidated total liabilities LARAaE 98,258 62,528
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment

(c)

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Reportable segment profit/loss represents the profit/loss
attributable to each segment without allocation of corporate
administrative expenses, corporate directors’ emoluments,
corporate income, finance costs and income tax credit. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision-maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than cash

and cash equivalents and corporate assets.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than

bond payables and corporate liabilities.

Geographic information

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the goods delivered or services provided. The
geographical location of the non-current assets is based on

the physical and operating location of the assets.

The Group's operations and workforce are mainly located in

Hong Kong.
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. /]-J\%Bﬁ%(%%)
(c) Geographic information (continued) (c) WEER (&)
The following table provides an analysis of the Group's TREFNRNEEBRGINBEP 2158
revenue from continuing operations from external customers. EZEBIRAZ DT
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F T tF
FHERT FHT
Asia Pacific o8 K b [
- Hong Kong —B% 63,335 48,025
— other regions —H i@ 1 94
Europe &M 548 776
North and South America e 48,385 39,037
112,279 87,932
The following table provides an analysis of the Group's TREIAEEIERBEE AT
non-current assets.
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+tF
FERT FHT
Asia Pacific o8 K b [ER
- Hong Kong —&BB 12,314 17,339
(d) Information about major customers d EEEFEHR
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total REERMAREBEFELSERBWA
revenue of the Group from continuing operations are set out HBiB10% 2 B FE ZWATHR T :
below:
2018 2017
—E-N\§ e
% of total % of total
HK$'000 revenue HK$'000 revenue
EBRAZ HBRAZ
TER Bk FET ARl

BEPA-BEREED
Business 47,284 42% 38,023 43%
Customer B - Building Contract ~ BFB—EF& B I
Works Business % 27,392 24% 4,252 5%
Customer C - Building Contract ~ BFC—-EF#& e T2
Works Business Y] 13,256 12% 5,163 6%

Customer A - Medical Devices

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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REVENUE

The Group derives its revenue from the transfer of goods and
services over time and at a point in time to customers. The Group

also derives its revenue from loan interest income.

The following is the disaggregation of revenue by major products or
service lines. This is consistent with the revenue information that is

disclosed for each reportable segment under HKFRS 8 in Note 6(a).

7.

LGN

AEER-BERARX -HRBERR
mMRETEPREFSEA AEBEH K
AR B ERFBWA

TRARETZEEMIRBEIER EDOHEA -
B B YA BT 5 6(a) P B T s R
F8IRIA TR E A E D AR B A B R
— %o

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+F
FET FAET
Continuing operations BREREEK

Revenue from contracts with customers XRHEEF&SHZWA
Sales of medical devices products HEBRREIHFED 47,284 38,023
Sales of plastic moulding products HEBBREREER 1,660 1,938
Revenue from construction contracts FEALHIMA 54,592 41,848
103,536 81,809

Revenue from other sources REHMRRZHA
Loan interest income B3H B WA 8,743 6,123
112,279 87,932

The disaggregation of revenue by the timing of revenue recognition
and by geographic markets is disclosed in Notes 6(a) and 6(c)

respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of the transaction
price allocated to the remaining performance obligations under
the Group’s existing construction contracts is approximately
HK$46,280,000. The Group will recognise this amount as revenue
in the future as the work is completed, which is expected to occur

over the next 5 to 26 months.

U A FE SR O B R R SRt & T 5 B o R Uk
A5 Bl 2E A B 5E6(a) 2 6(c) °

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—H 2EFAX
ESERARECNBETHHRBTEENR
B 485 41 546,280,000/ 7T ° A& B 1
RBE®IETEKEERZEREARA
TRERAKSE26/E AR
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8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS OR 8. HtmREMBAREIE
LOSSES
Analysis of the Group’s other income and other gains or losses MAFERND RIS E 2 B s RE
recognised during the year is as follows: A S BB AT T -
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2-N\F —E—tF
FERT FET
Continuing operations BEREXK
Exchange gain, net bE 5 s - 5 EE 177 182
Loss on sale of held-for-trading HERIEEERE KB
investments (Note 20) (FfF5E20) - (59,097)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale e EM B E E 2 W
financial asset (Note 18) (FF5E18) - 3,360
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME BEREEZ
plant and equipment (B8, s (528) 495
Loss on change in fair value of FEEBEREZANEERY
held-for-trading investments (Note 20) &8 (M3E20) (10,005) (75,181)
Interest income F B A 5 5
Others =i 643 2,033
(9,708) (128,203)
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MKER
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—tF
FERT FET
Continuing operations BEREXK
Interest on bond payables JET &2 F & 666 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 10.BRATEH A B 1B

The Group's loss before income tax is arrived at after charging:

REE Z RIS HBIBEC IR THI&E

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—tF
FTER FHET
Continuing operations BREEER
Employee costs (including Directors’ EERK (RREESEHE)
emoluments)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —Fe ILERHEAMET 13,814 11,500
— Contributions to defined contribution — REHFORRE B
retirement plan (Note 28) (FF3E28) 302 296
- Share-based payment expenses (Note 29)  —UAH BER ZM5KFA X
(KF3t29) - 3,751
14,116 15,547
Depreciation of property, plant and - BEREHEINE
equipment 639 1,038
Amortisation of intangible asset (Note 17) BmICEESBE (ME17) 40 241
Auditor’s remuneration ZERD B & 520 440
Operating lease charges in respect of BEMEZKERSE
properties 863 1,978
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 16) PEUREEE (aE16) 3,817 -
Net impairment loss on trade and B 5 [ H th fE W SR IE R (B B 18
other receivables (Note 21) FRE (MEE21) 1,141 -
Share-based payment expenses (other than ARG () A EHE 2 5 X
employee costs) (Note 29) (TBEEEEKRAR) (MF29) - 7,020
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AR X 2 FEKA 38,316 30,554
Cost of services Ak 75 B AN 50,027 36,918
11. INCOME TAX CREDIT M. FEHER
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
2% [ =
FERT FHT
Continuing operations HEREEK
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBENEH
— Over-provision in prior year —BAFERERE 14 7
Deferred tax credit — current year (Note 26) iEEF B % —AFEZ (HiiE26) 7 40
Income tax credit PR % 21 47
ERERERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 11.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years. No Hong Kong Profits Tax was
provided for both years as the Group did not derive any estimated

assessable profits for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

EHER &)

BREMNEHR IR EFE 2 et R
Mz16 5%t H - ARNAEBRBE_Z
—NER-E—tE+A=+—HLF
JE I 4 A A ] fh AT ERRBUE A - B
B EI EEH T AN G-

AEEMEHELEGABEREMERH
Was R 2 FRPTIS BRI RS AR T

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F “E—+tF
FAx FER
Continuing operations AR
Loss before income tax MRETS LA E 1R (26,773) (147,906)
Tax calculated at the rates applicable to REBREER CEAME
the jurisdiction concerned FTEZFIE (4,347) (24,296)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for PRI X 2 BIs 2
tax purpose 2,554 1,520
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERMBAZBBELE
tax purpose (5) (7)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMEEB B BELE 2,666 23,529
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses AL ABRBIEBE
previously not recognised M E (905) (783)
Over-provision in prior year BEFEBBERE (14) 7)
Tax effect of temporary differences REREHUEEZE NG E
not recognised 30 (3)
Income tax credit FrEmE R (21) (47)
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12.LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEe

PR ER AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

12.BREEB
(a) EREXREE

ARBEREAREERERABEYE

owners of the Company is based on the following data: RATEIRRHE -
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F “E—+tF
FER FHT
Loss [Fi-]
Loss for the year for the purposes of R EBREABEME 2
computation of basic loss per share FAEE
— from continuing operations —REFECEES (26,752) (147,859)
— from discontinued operation —REERIEEEB - (71)
(26,752) (147,930)
'000 ‘000
TR Fig
Number of shares KRB
Weighted average number of ordinary 2377 & @& 2 hnE FH
shares in issue 1,862,679 1,862,679
Diluted loss per share (b) BREEEE
Diluted loss per share was the same as basic loss per share ABZE_Z-NEFR_ZE—tF+=

because there was no potential dilutive ordinary share in issue

=t HIFETESRTAE

for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. mEreE s TRk HEREEEE
HGAREREEER -
The Company’s outstanding share options as at 31 December WEARARARZZE—N\FRZE

2018 and 2017 were not taken into account as they had an

antidilutive effect for the years ended 31 December 2018 and

2017 which would result in a reduction in the loss per share. RZFE—tF+=

EARBENE
b o

—EFt A=t -BZRERITEZ
Eh# RERERBE-_T-N\F

A=Z+—HILEFE
"B EREE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

13. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 13.EEME

REEENHENAE (ZB—LF: \R)

178

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2017: eight)

directors during the years were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

EEEAZHMEWT:

BE_Z—\E+-A=+—HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e 2K
EEHe BENAR B EHER Foh
TER TET TET TET
Executive Directors HITES
Zhang Hengxin RTE - 240 - 240
Jia Minghui EHE - 240 12 252
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Chan Tsz Keung B 858 120 - - 120
Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon BHHE (RZT-N\F
(appointed on 15 March 2018) —B+HBEZRT) 172 - - 172
Guo Zhenhui (appointed BEE (RZT—N\F
on 15 March 2018) “A+HEBEZRT) 76 - - 76
Wong Siu Ki (passed away BB (RZZT—NF
on 7 March 2018) = AtAEt) 22 - - 22
Total fEt 390 480 12 882
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 13.ESME€ 2

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BHE_ZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e 2Rk
E50 EoFE  RHEAK it
THx THEx THx THT
Executive Directors HiTES
Zhang Hengxin KT E - 240 - 240
Jia Minghui ERE - 240 7 247
Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (resigned on EEm(RZT—tF
31 January 2017) —A=+—HEE) - 210 3 213
Peng Shiyuan (resigned on THR(RZT—1F
27 December 2017) TZAZTHEHEME) - 19 - 119
Independent Non-executive BUYFHTES
Directors
Wong Siu Ki =Pl 120 - - 120
Chan Tsz Keung (appointed on RE®(R=T—tF
11 October 2017) TA+—BEZME) 27 - - 27
Chan Ngai Sang Kenny BRERE(RZT—15F
(resigned on 1 August 2017) NA—BEE) 70 - - 70
Li Kwok Fat (resigned on FEE (AT —+F
27 December 2017) TZAZTHEHEME) 119 - - 119
Total wmEt 336 809 10 1,155

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for the Executive
Directors are generally emoluments paid or payable in respect of
those persons’ other services in connection with the management

of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

During both years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office.

No Directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 31

December 2018 (2017: nil).

ENATESH RMREDNEAER
D EALTRERARBRENE QR
EBTEEENEMRE M NHENZ
& -

REBEEZT-—NFRZZT—tF+=A
=S+ —BALEMEFEARN AEEYERE
EXRNEMME ERAREMARERSK
RIMAREE R 2 SRS ERBE A E -

WRE-F—\E+ZA=+—ALEE
RERE FHEEABS (—F—LF ) -

ERERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

14. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
nil (2017: nil) were Directors whose emoluments are included in the
disclosure in Note 13 above. The emoluments of the remaining five

(2017: five) individuals were as follows:

14. EEM<E

AEERERERFH AL BEETS
(ZE—tF TR)EF ZFEEFZH
EREXHFEIBEE-BRTABAL(ZF
—tF BB ZMewT:

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-N\F Tt F

FHET FAET

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMMe 7,110 5,557
Retirement scheme contributions IRURET B3R 90 91
7,200 5,648

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BE2ME AT THBERA

2018 2017

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

—E-N\F —T—tF

A N ¢

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/ 7T 3 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,0017%& 7C £3,000,0007% 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001% 7T £3,500,0007% 7T 1 1

During both years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or

as compensation for loss of office.

The remuneration of nil (2017: nil) senior management personnel
has been disclosed in the above table of the five highest paid

individuals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 9% HEREE
Furniture,
fixtures
Plant and and office Motor
machinery equipment vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HBRC-EBR
BERHKE BARE "E @it
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Cost A
At 1 January 2017 RZFE—tF—H—H 8,584 2,776 4,359 15,719
Additions at cost NE (RKAE) - 17 478 495
Disposals HE (853) - (1,998) (2,851)
At 31 December 2017 and RZTE—+tF+=ZA=+—H
1 January 2018 rk=ZFE-NF—A—H 7,731 2,793 2,839 13,363
Additions at cost NE (IRKAME) - 2 = 2
Disposals HE = (10) = (10)
Written off i - (1,005) - (1,005)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NE+=ZA=+—H 7,731 1,780 2,839 12,350

Accumulated depreciation R FERRAE

and impairment

At 1 January 2017 RZZE—t&—H—H 8,584 1,221 3,262 13,067
Depreciation e - 596 445 1,041
Disposals HE (853) - (1,979) (2,832)
At 31 December 2017 and RZZ—t&+=ZRA=1+—H

1 January 2018 kZF-NF—A—H 7,731 1,817 1,728 11,276
Depreciation e - 158 481 639
Disposals HE = (10) = (10)
Written off i 35 - (474) = (474)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZB-NE+=-A=1+—H 7,731 1,491 2,209 11,431
Net book value IREFE
At 31 December 2018 R-ZB-N\F+=ZA=+—H - 289 630 919
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+-A=1+—8H - 976 1,111 2,087

ERERERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRMRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_—F

—NF+=F=+—HALFE

2016, as further explained below.

16. GOODWILL 16. &
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at X¥BEMPRECBEERNKBERESER
acquisition, to the CGU that is expected to benefit from that TEHEXBEHPE R cReEESM-
business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 HERZZT-—NEFERZZT—EF+=ZA
December 2018 and 2017 relates to a business unit acquired in = t+t-—HZEAEER-_Z - FREZ

EBEMBR T XA — M

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Y Wy Tt
FHERT FHET
Cost AR
At 1 January and 31 December W—RA—BRk+=ZA=+—H
(Notes (i) & (ii)) OB =) B Gii) ) 77,558 77,558
Accumulated impairment losses AFtREESE
At 1 January (Note (ii)) M—A—8 (KaEdii) (67,362) (67,362)
Impairment loss recognised in the year FEANBERZBEEE
(Note (i) (BEEEG)) (3.817) -
At 31 December W+tZA=+—H (71,179) (67,362)
Net book value at 31 December R+T-ZA=Z+—B2ZEREFEE 6,379 10,196

Notes:

(i)  Building Contract Works Business

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, goodwill of approximately
HK$10,196,000 relates to the Building Contract Works Business
unit, a CGU, acquired as part of the acquisition of ACE Engineering
Limited (“ACE Engineering”) in 2016.

iy BFERBIRER

e

—E-N\FERZZFE—tF+=A
+— 8- 4910,196,000/8 JT Z I & T}
IR T —R"FERANBLRATIIIEA
A ([R@ITiR])z—39MlE
ZEFERIRER (A—BARSEL

\%

Bl)BE#-
The recoverable amount of the CGU, has been determined using REEEBEMN 2 RESEDRIEE
cash flow projections to calculate value in use based on estimates ERMEZE R REENRAE S
and financial budgets approved by the Directors. These projections MEBAGECHAEBEETE -ZSHEA
cover a five-year period, and have been discounted using a pre-tax MELFHME 2®M1334% (==
discount rate of 13.34% (2017: 13.79%). The cash flows beyond —tF:13.79% ) 2 BIATRE B K BLIR ©
that five-year period have been extrapolated using a growth rate of HBEAFHEzREREEFAI% (=

3% (2017: 3%).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

@)

(if)

Building Contract Works Business (continued)

All of the assumptions and estimations involved in the preparation
of the cash flow projection including budgeted gross margin,
discount rate and growth rate are determined by the management
of the Group based on past performance, experience and their

expectation for future market development.

Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of the CGU
is determined to be approximately HK$28,326,000. The carrying
amount of the CGU has been reduced to the recoverable
amount and accordingly, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$3,817,000 (2017: HK$nil) (Note 10) has been recognised
on goodwill in the current year. This impairment loss is primarily
due to the performance of this business segment not matching
up to management’s expectations in 2018 and the business
unit's expected performance in 2019 and beyond based on the
latest information available. Much of the problem arose due to
continuous curtailment of gross profit margin in current year as
a result of decrease in awards of projects in the private sector
which vyielded higher margins in price, under more fierce market
competition of the building construction and maintenance industry
during the year. Despite efforts made in controlling and managing
contract costs, the continuous rise in subcontracting costs in
current year resulting from increased labour costs also contributed
to the low profit margin of the business segment which resulted In
operating loss for the year. The budget/forecast has been revised

downward accordingly.

The impairment loss has been included in profit or loss in the

administrative expenses.
Medical Devices Business

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, goodwill of approximately
HK$67,362,000 relates to the Medical Devices Business unit
acquired as part of the acquisition of the Titron Group in 2011, as
defined and detailed in the Company’s circular dated 12 August
2011. Owing to the significant and continuous losses incurred by
this business unit in prior years, all of the goodwill of approximately
HK$67,362,000 had been impaired as at 31 December 2014.

16.BE (#)

BaE: (&)

@)

(if)

BFEReIRER (&)

REREREFU SR ZMARRK

et (BEREENE BAXINEER

R)DmAEEEREEREBERE
BREEEHRKRDSER RN
EREe

BEFE ReEFEEMNAKE S
KEEE TE 40 /528,326,000 Lo e E A
BUMNEREEREATKRE %3 B
- RAFERRANEBRAEBENR
3,817,0008 L (ZE—+tF: T )
(Mt5E10) - RIBHZ I RIS AR HIRRE
BEENETZHRLEB S ANERR
HERBHR T \FHBRHTR -
MEEBEMR T —AFRUEN
TERRBEMBC-FEETERNFEN 2
FRERBETENTISHF H B
2L A BERFEER S8 L& E0
BHOBEERD HMEBRNFEER
ERFBEER -BERITHREEAEHKX

ABEERTE N BHRES TRAE
MEBRFEEND BRATE L7 75

EREH S BORBEE 1 HERE
POAE S 1 o B - TN E A
R

BMEBECREREAFATHA

BB ER

%:"-AE& —+t¥+=A
=+—8- %@67,362,000;%752%5%)3
ﬁ%%%%:%ffEW%ﬁ%EE
ZBOMKB L BERERBEFEN

(E%&#hi$hﬂﬁ%ﬁ:?**
FNATZBZB®H) BRZEKE
NABTFERERSEREBE &R
TF-OF+_A=+—H2HHE
#767,362,0007 7L B H B E

EFRERARQTF
2018 %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. BB E

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
Contracts Contractor Contracts Contractor
backlog registrations Total backlog  registrations Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARHEH  EEEITM @i RKERAH REEER FeE
TET TET TET TET TR THET
Cost A
At 1 January and 31 December R—RA—BkK
+-A=1+—H 2,786 5,016 7,802 2,786 5,016 7,802
Accumulated amortisation B
At 1 January ®—A—H 2,746 - 2,746 2,505 - 2,505
Amortisation B 40 - 40 241 - 241
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 2,786 - 2,786 2,746 - 2,746
Net book value at 31 December R+=A=+—-Hx
REEE - 5,016 5,016 40 5,016 5,056

Intangible assets with net book value of approximately
HK$5,016,000 (2017: HK$5,056,000) as at 31 December 2018
represent contractor registrations and contracts backlog arising

from the acquisition of ACE Engineering in 2016.

ACE Engineering is a registered contractor in several government/
public organisations and only registered contractors are eligible to
obtain contracts from these government bodies. These contractor
registrations include the registration as an authorised building
contractor under the sub-category of Maintenance Works in
the category of Building Work in Group M1 approved by the
Hong Kong Housing Authority. In general, these registrations
require certain criteria to be met which effectively limit the number
of new entries in the list of authorised contractors. The contractor
registrations are recognised as intangible assets with indefinite
useful live and measured initially at cost and subsequently measured

at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The contracts backlog represents the contracts on hand of
ACE Engineering on the date of acquisition and is recognised as
intangible assets with finite useful life. The contracts backlog is
measured initially at cost and subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
The contracts backlog was amortised over the period up to the
completion of each of the contracts. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the amortisation of intangible asset was

approximately HK$40,000 (2017: HK$241,000) (Note 10).

The contractor registrations and contracts backlog relate to the
segment of Building Contract Works Business which constitutes
a CGU, and have been assessed for impairment as detailed in
Note 16(i). Based on the impairment assessment performed by
management, the Directors are of the opinion that no impairment

on the intangible assets is considered necessary.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

On 29 May 2017, Eternity Riches Limited ("”Eternity Riches"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, completed the
disposal of AFS investment in 14% of the issued share capital of
Optumus Group Limited (“Optumus Group”), pursuant to the sale
and purchase agreement on the same date entered into between
Eternity Riches as the vendor and three purchasers, each being an
independent third party and a shareholder of Optumus Group, at an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$18,660,000, with a gain arising
from disposal of the AFS investment of HK$3,360,000 (Note 8)

recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2017.

REMBRRME

NEFZA=+—HIFE

7. BEEE (&)

18.\

AEKEHOTAREEBERTBaTRZF
BELEEARERRAEREAFH 2 EFE
EE -REREAENDVIERATE  BRIR
PRASH ZEt S R REUREBEE K
TRENREBEE AT AR -
NEE_Z-N\FE+-_A=+—HILFE"
| EEBHENAL0,0008T(ZE—+
F:241,000%7T) (KMizE10) -

AEEEMERTRANEEFTABRTRE
EBOM (O BEK —BRSELEN)
B REBETRER MG (FARME
16()  RBEEREBETZRMENGE EF
Ry BEMENEERRBE-

THEEMBEE

RZZ—+FHAZTNB ERAEAZE
%ﬁﬁﬁ%'&ﬂﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁ@aﬂ(rﬁﬁd)%&ﬁ
EREMEBERAR ([EHEE])14%
BRETRAZAHEERE B RAE
BUERBEH I B=Z%EH (SERBIE
EHAREREE KRR IEE H® &
&R (B 518,660,000/ 7T - HEAIHEH &
& & E A 2 We53,360,000% 7T (K #E8) B
REBEE-T—+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE
ZIBEP R
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e ERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

19. INVENTORIES 19.78
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F Tt F
FHERT FHT
Raw materials R 127 -
Finished goods BIPX i 18 111
145 111
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no write-off of RBE-_Z—-—N\F+_A=+—RHIEFE
inventories (2017: nil) was recognised in profit or loss. WHEREEERMEFE (T — 5
') -

20. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

20. FEEERE

2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
Y My -t
FHx FER
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB LM ZBRAES
at market value BminEE 25,218 35,223

The fair values of these investments are determined with reference

to the quoted market bid prices on the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, net realised loss on sale
of held-for-trading investments of HK$nil (2017: approximately
HK$59,097,000) (Note 8) and net unrealised loss on change
in fair value of held-for-trading investments of approximately
HK$10,005,000 (2017: HK$75,181,000) (Note 8) was recognised in

profit or loss.
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 1. EG R EMEWRIE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2-N\F —ET—+tF
FH5 FRR
Trade receivables (Note (i) B 5 U GRIE (B EE®) 15,440 12,063
Loss allowance (Notes (i) & (iii)) B R (PR AEG) R (i) (489) -
14,951 12,063
Retention receivables (Note (ii)) FEURE € (BT 5EG)) 6,454 8,180
Loss allowance (Note (iii)) BB R A (P EEGi)) (29) -
6,425 8,180
Loan receivables (Note (iv)) JfE U E T (M REGY)) 139,684 110,114
Loss allowance (Note (iv)) E A (HEGy) (3,253) -
136,431 110,114
Amounts due from customers EREFEHITIERIEA
for contract work (Note 22) (F¥sE22) - 412
Other deposits, prepayments and HfihZe BERIER
other receivables (Note (v)) H fth fE U SR TE (K EE()) 20,309 18,415
Total trade and other receivables B REMBURIBLEE 178,116 149,184

Notes:

(i)  The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days (2017:

30 to 90 days) to its trade customers. The ageing analysis of trade

receivables (net of accumulated impairment losses) by invoice date

W3 :

REBRTEESZREFPZFEHEE
HRR30E90R (=T —+EF:30290
K)-BHREKFEAE (MK EFTRESB

is as follows: B)RBEEAREZERROWNT
2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

Er Y- Tt

FHx FAE

Current BN &R 5,815 5,175
1 to 90 days 1E290K 6,520 3,374
91 to 180 days 912180k 187 1,431
Over 180 days 180K A 2,429 2,083
Trade receivables 25 EWFIE 14,951 12,063
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

(continued)

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of making
payments when due and current liability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customers operate.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. As
at 31 December 2017, receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired constitute about 72% of total trade receivables, and
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default. The following is an ageing analysis of trade
receivables (net of accumulated impairment losses) by due date as
at 31 December 2017.

1. EGZREMEWRE &)
Mgt : (&)

(i)

(#&)

HRESHERUFENS  ZRBHEER
BEEZHMARFRHAEETENEGEE
FHE-METHIERFZBEINHA
RS kBRI NER TEEREP
ZREERUAREFEEMBEEER
B AKBUARZELEHBIFTAEME
R RZT—tF+-A=+—8"
KBENMKBREZERKRIBEE S E
UG TR TE A 5B 4972 % - BER T HA I 4 A
R Z RERFAB -R-ZZ—1F
+ZRA=+—8 ESEKHE(NK
2 REBE) RN A ZRES TN
—Fo

HK$'000

FHET

Neither past due nor impaired K@ AT ARRE 8,745
Less than 3 months past due AR =1EA 1,111
3 to 6 months past due A== NAA 731
Over 6 months past due a7 fE A A B 1,476
3,318

Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE 12,063

As at 31
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of

December 2017, included in the Group's trade

approximately HK$3,318,000 which are past due as at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided any impairment loss.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2017, receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have a
good repayment record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Retention receivables are derived from the Building Contract Works
Business and are interest-free and recoverable at the end of the
retention period of individual construction contracts ranging from
3 months to 1 year.

Retention receivables have decreased due to completion of
retention period of several construction contracts during the
current year.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group measures loss allowance for
trade and retention receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.

The Group categorises its trade and retention receivables based
on the ageing. Future cash flows for each group of receivables are
estimated on the basis of historical default experience over the past
two years, adjusted for factors that are specific to the customers
and the effects of current conditions as well as forward looking
information. For receivables relating to accounts which are long
overdue with significant amounts or known insolvencies, they are

assessed individually for impairment provision.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade and retention receivables
as at 31 December 2018.

21. 8

REMBRRME

NEFZA=+—HIFE

SREMERFIE &)

Bisk: (&)

(i)

(iii)

ERRESTDREZTRETREY
VREERNERESHRER (N T
=EAE—F)RATUHE -

ERRE SRS IBERAFEETT
2a ’M%IE@E%E;%"
RZBE-NFE+ZA=+—B X5E

BEERE2MBEREEEE (EREE
EEAEB)ZEHFAEESEPHER
FEd IR B £ 2 R

AEBRBEREDEEZEBUEKEAR
EUWRE S - FHEHBKRAEZARR S
MEDNRBEMEBEENERME
URAREFPMERBERZEARRER
GEZZERMEEEBEHAE -3
HEMAHAEARERCTHWERP

EBBMHET - H R IER (e
BH s -

TRE#R-E—N\F+-A=+—
AR AEESERRRE 5K
EREARES 2 BREEERYE
¥

Gross Gross
carrying carrying
amount - amount -
Expected loss Trade Retention Loss
rate receivables receivables allowance
B 5 R BYWRES
AfEE=R HEREE HERTEE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Not past due 380 B 0.4% 12,299 6,454 83
Less than 3 months past due wEI LR =1EA 0.7% 279 - 2
3 to 6 months past due A= 2= XA 4.6% 283 = 13
Over 6 months past due wHAINEA LA £ 16.3% 2,579 - 420
3,141 - 435
Total st 15,440 6,454 518
SERZRARAE
2018 & 3§
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(continued)

The movement in loss allowance recognised for trade and retention

receivables during the current year is as follows:

1. EGREMEWRE &)
M (4)

(iii)

(%)

KA E 5t 8 5 e YRR B AR B
SHERAZERBREZLSHWT

Trade Retention
receivables receivables Total
B 5 EWRE ERRES “t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FET
Balance as at 1 January 2018 W_E—-N\F—-—H—H
(Note 3(d)(i)(B)) 2 #&eR (B EE3(d)()(B)) 434 35 469
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 109 - 109
Amount written off as uncollectible W T AT U Bl & 2R (54) - (54)
Impairment loss reversed BB DR EEE - (6) (6)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZTE—N\F+A
=t+—Bz#&# 489 29 518

The significant changes in the gross carrying amount of trade
receivables contributed to the increase in the loss allowance during
the current year include (i) settlement in full by customers that
were over 3 months past due which resulted in a decrease in loss
allowance of approximately HK$188,000; and (ii) origination of
new trade receivables net of those settled as well as increase in
days past due over 3 months which resulted in an increase in loss

allowance of approximately HK$268,000.

Loan receivables represent outstanding principals and interest
receivables arising from the Money Lending Business of the Group.
All of the loan receivables are entered with contractual maturity
within 12 months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its loan receivables in order to minimise credit risk by reviewing the

borrowers’ financial positions.

The loan receivables are interest-bearing at rates mutually agreed
between the contracting parties, ranging from 6% to 12% per
annum (2017: 6% to 8% per annum). All of the loan receivables

were unsecured as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2018

BORWABEEAENEREDHE
BURNFERAEBRL N REONERPE
HEEOHBB=EASREEEE
B #7188,00078 7T+ K (i)51 B 5 FE IR
RIBFENRE 4 E M BRI &
o HA R R = M A R B I N 2 A
B BB HEIENA268,000% 7T

EREFEAEBNEEBTEEZR
BEASRERMNE -ABEREKERZ
SHEHBEHRNEARN - AEEKS
BEBBEMERA M BN G HHE
FEM B R 2 Bg AR ) 15 SR (5 B R B

BERE -

BWERTIZAENTERBEZH
BB FNENF6%EIZ2% (ZF
—LEF FMNENF6%ES%) o=
E2-NER-_ZF-—tF+ZA=+—
B A RRERE REER-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2018, none of the loan receivables had become
past due. Loss allowance for expected credited loss has been
made on an individual basis under 12-month ECL assessment. The
movement in loss allowance recognised for loan receivables during

the current year is as follows:

1. EGREMEWRE &)
M (4)

(iv) (%)

RZZE-N\F+ZR=+—8H #EE
WERaH -BHREEERZBRER
ERT_EARREEBENGZE
PR o R E 3B W E SRR
ZEBBEES IR

HK$'000

FHT

Balance as at 1 January 2018 (Note 3(d)(i)(B)) RZZT—\F—A— Rz (FEE3(d)0)(B)) 2,215
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 1,038
Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZTE—N\F+ZA=+—H2z&# 3,253

The significant change in the gross carrying amount of loan
receivables contributed to the increase in the loss allowance during
the current year includes origination of new loan receivables net
of those settled which resulted in an increase in loss allowance of

approximately HK$755,000.

Loan receivables were neither past due nor impaired as at 31
December 2017.

FEKREREEEENEREHGHR
FEBRBEGE N BREHERE R
BREeBENRWEFFEGEUER R
{834 hN49755,0007% 7T °

R_ZE—+&F+_A=+—8 EKE
ABE AR & H IR AR R E ©
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BB REMBWRE#)

Notes: (continued) PiEE: (42)

(v)  The Group's other deposits, prepayments and other receivables (v) AKEZEMES TN RIE R E
represented the following amounts as at the end of the reporting WARIBIERMEBRR 2 THIRIE -
period.

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-N\F —E—+F

FHERT FET

Prepayments TR FIE 3,603 1,067

Deposits Z& 7,435 7,815

Other receivables H b YGRS 9,271 9,533

20,309 18,415
As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s deposits is as RZZTE—NF+ZA=+—H K&
an amount of approximately HK$6,779,000 (2017: HK$6,779,000) B 7% e 81 #6,779,0008 L (= F
which represented deposit placed with securities broker for the — -+ :6,779,000/ 70 ) Z K IE K
trading of investment securities. HEMRKREZTARIERBSF LKL
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group's other RZE-NFERZZE—LtF+=HA
receivables mainly represented payment of expenses on behalf of Et+—H AEEZEMERREETE

subcontractors. EROEEINZER-
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR 22.

CONTRACT WORK

The amounts due from customers for contract work as at

31 December 2017 represented the following amounts.

EREFEHNIRNE

R-FB—tF+-_A=+—HZRKREP
BHTIRREAR/W TR

HK$'000
FET
Contracts in progress at the end of RBEEHREEED
the reporting period
Contract costs incurred plus recognised EHEBE AR DN E R0 AR
profit less recognised loss B HEREE 25,340
Less: Progress billings B EE A K (24,928)
412
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HBEEBNDNTA:
Amounts due from customers for EWEPE IR KE (Mit21)
contract work (Note 21) 412
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. B ERBEETEEY
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
S Y- —E
FTERT FET
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERS 18,300 26,276

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and cash held by
the Group. The bank balances carry interest at market rates which

range from 0.001% to 0.3% (2017: 0.001% to 0.25%) per annum.

There were no short-term bank deposits as at 31 December 2018

and 2017.

RekReEEMRERAEERFE ZRIT
B RRE - RITHERIRTIHERENTF
0.001EZE03E(ZE—L5:0001E%
0.25[E )&t E°

R_ZE-N\FEER-_T—+F+_A=+—
B W5 BRI T 7 5Kk ©
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 BEZ R HMEA KA
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
By -t
FAR R
Trade payables 2 5 ME /8 19,001 14,186
Retention payables FERTRE & 3,418 4,256
Contract liabilities EHBE 715 -
Accruals and other payables JE &t 5K I8 fe E At FE A~ 5K I8 43,631 43,233
66,765 61,675

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented

based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

REERR EFRNFERERTAYZE
S 2 BRER D ATIAT ©

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

—E-N\F —ET—+tF

FHET FAET

Within 3 months =EAR 16,923 12,246
Over 3 months but within 6 months BE=EAERNEANRN 239 661
Over 6 months S E A 1,839 1,279
19,001 14,186

The average credit period on trade purchases is 30-90 days (2017:
30-90 days).

As at 31 December 2018, contract liabilities of approximately
HK$715,000 (1 January 2018: HK$nil) represented payments
received in advance that were related to sales of goods not yet
delivered to customers arising from the Medical Devices Business
and Plastic Moulding Business. The Group will recognise this amount
as revenue when the goods are delivered to the customers. There
was no revenue recognised in the current year that was included in

the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, included in the Group's
accruals and other payables are an amount due to Titron Group
Holdings Limited (“TGHL") of approximately HK$1,700,000 and
the cash consideration of HK$7,500,000 payable to the Vendors
of Titron Group (as defined and detailed in the Company’s circular
dated 12 August 2011) arising from the acquisition of Titron Group
in 2011. TGHL was one of the Vendors of Titron Group. Titron
Group is principally engaged in the Medical Devices Business and
the Plastic Moulding Business. One of the shareholders of TGHL,
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin, was a former shareholder and the former
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. The amounts
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand as at 31

December 2018 and 2017.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, included in the Group's
accruals and other payables are surety bonds payable in the
amount of HK$28,798,000 which represented several bonded sums
received by the Group from a contractor payable to employers of
the contractor as security for good performance on the part of the
contractor for certain building contract works of the employers. The
amounts were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand as

at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

2 B REMEFNFIE &)

RZE-—NFRZZE—+F+ZA=+—
B AREEZEFHEREMENRES
& —ZE fE S Titron Group Holdings Limited
([TGHL ) Z X IE £91,700,0007% 7T & 7
—E-—FUBEEEER (EERFER
AAREBHA-Z——FN\A+-AZ
BH)EEZENEEEEES 2HER
87,500,000 L TGHLAER E@ 2 &
PNEHEREEFENEBRERE
EBRBBEAEBE - TGHLZ —ERE
EEfmT e R E AR R & AT E FE 3k
ERELELB RN T - N\FRZT—+tF
TZAZ+—H ZAEAEER 28K
BIRESREE-

\\\

RZE-NFRZT—+F+_A=+—
= '$§%ZJ%§+%'UE&E1@E§H?KIE’T
FEE 1 B #91R 728,798,000/ 7T % ZUEIE
AEBMBAREEImENRETREEY
ETRES EREERAZETREREE
FEHNIRBORUEERBENEM- N _F
—N\ERZZE—+FF+RA=+—H0"%
REREER 2R RARERER
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25.BOND PAYABLES 25. Bt &
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—®-NF e
FHx FAR
Bond payables — unsecured FERTE S — R 30,666 -
On 12 October 2018, the Company issued unlisted bonds to an RZFE-NF+A+ZA ARAR—%

%= 1T 4E 4%8 /530,000,000/8

independent third party with an aggregate principal amount of VA
HK$30,000,000. The bonds are issued at the interest rate of 10% TLZELEMEF - ZEFEFFEI10%ET
per annum and will mature on the date falling on the 36 months B BREHFEITEE36MA%RE B (B
after the date of issue of the bonds (i.e. 12 October 2021). Interest ZZE-—F+A+=R)H - EHERMF
payables of the bonds were included with the bond payables in the SRAGRENBRARAZENES %
consolidated statement of financial position. The proceeds from the TEHFZASHREREAEEETEZER
issue of the bonds are used for the principal activities and general R—REEES -
working capital of the Group.
26. DEFERRED TAX 26. I fiE Bi 1H
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have any RZE-NERZE—tF+_A=+—
deferred tax assets. The details and movement of deferred tax CREE T BRI B E BT
liability are as follows: HEEZFBEREESHWT
Fair value
adjustment
on intangible
assets
HK$'000
BEEEZ
AREERAE
FHT
At 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—t&F—-HF—H 874
Credited to profit or loss for the year (Note 11) AFAFEEZ (M) (40)
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZZE—+tFE+A=+—HEK
—N\F—H—H 834
Credited to profit or loss for the year (Note 11) FTAFEERS (HeE11) (7)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—N\F+-_HA=+—H 827
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DEFERRED TAX (continued) 26. BB A (#)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses RBEHAR AEE 2 ADABIEEIRE
of approximately HK$406,296,000 (2017: HK$395,637,000). No #4) /406,296,000 T (=& — L&
deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses have been recognised 395,637,000/ ) AR BEEERBEA
as at 31 December 2018 and 2017, as management considers it RAREBBEHRBEREERREB T8
is unlikely that future taxable profits against which the losses can BEAARRERG &M ATHBHEE &
be utilised will be available in the foreseeable future with certainty KRB N\FER=_ZT—+tF+_A=+—
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. All of the tax losses as B S RIEEERAEEHIEEE R
at 31 December 2018 and 2017 will not expire under current tax BROIBE RZE-NEER_Z—tF
legislation. TZA=tT—HZAEREEEETEE
HA o
SHARE CAPITAL 27. A
Number of
shares Amount
HK$'000
RGEE |
FET
Authorised: SEE
Balance as at 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+ZA=+—HBR
and 31 December 2018 —E-NF+ZA=+—HZ
R 40,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
Balance as at 31 December 2017 and RZE—tF+ZA=+—HBR
31 December 2018 —F-N\F+ZA=F+—BZ
=3 1,862,679,481 18,627
SRERERAR
2018 F 3§
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28. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant

income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC,
the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC participate in certain
government retirement benefit schemes (“Schemes”) whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the Schemes to fund
the retirement benefits of their eligible employees. Contributions
made to the Schemes are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the relevant
requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities of the PRC are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
Schemes is to pay the ongoing required contribution under the

Schemes.

During the year, the Group made retirement benefits scheme
contributions totalling approximately HK$302,000 (2017:
HK$296,000) (Note 10) for continuing operations. At the end of

the reporting period, there are no forfeited contributions.
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29.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 30 June 2015, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”), which was approved by the shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”) at the annual general meeting of

the Company held on the same date.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant share options to the eligible participants as incentives or

rewards for their contributions to the Group.

According to the Share Option Scheme, the board of Directors
(“Board”) may grant share options to the eligible participants as
defined in the Share Option Scheme to subscribe for such number
of shares as the Board may determine. Share options granted
should be accepted within 28 days from the date of the letter of
grant. Upon acceptance of the share options, the grantee shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.
Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and all applicable
laws, the Board has the power to determine the period within

which payments or calls must or may be made.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined by the
Board, which shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of the grant, which must be a business day;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal

value of a share.

9. BRI

RZZE—HFEXNA=ZTH KAARMH—
AEERERT B ([BAERT &)  YEAR
AR ([BERD R E BRITZARRRRE
BERE LA

BREFIEEEAREIRNAER2HE
EROBEE FRREFHAKEFELR
Bl 22 E) =k [ 5t

RIFERESE EF S RBRERTS
PIREZEERSEERDBRE AR
BEESURETHREZRD -RHEZE
PR ZE A f 35 B 1 B BRAE R 28 A A 4
TR AN BB IR B - R OR A BRI 2 BB A
AR T Z1.008 TTHERR(E - ERE R
BEABIGRFAEMAEEREZRZART &
S ZERRT VAR AT sl R IE
ZHARR -

BREZTEEHEFSRE LB
RATz&SE: (WERHAH (BARE
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all share options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
on the date of approval and adoption of the Share Option Scheme
provided that the Company may at any time seek approval from the
Shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as at
the date of approval by the Shareholders in general meeting where
such limit is refreshed. Share options previously granted under any
share option schemes of the Company (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes or exercised
options) will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit

as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as
at the date of grant unless such grant has been duly approved
by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting at
which the relevant eligible participant and his associates abstained
from voting. Share options granted to substantial Shareholders
or Independent Non-executive Directors or any of their respective
associates in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s issued share capital on the date of grant and with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the

Shareholders.

The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
share option can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. There is no general requirement that a share option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years

and will expire at the close of business on 29 June 2025.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. IR MERT & (&)
Details of share options granted under the Share Option Scheme BIBEREESIME L BREZFBWN
are as follows: T

Date of grant

Vesting period

Exercise period Exercise price

REBH HEH TES TEE
1 June 2017 - 1 June 2017 - 31 May 2022 HK$0.6547% 7T
—E—+HF5XA—H —E—+HFXA—H=Z
—E-__FRA=+—H
26 July 2017 - 26 July 2017 = 25 July 2022 HK$0.123/8 7T

I S B AN =

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by eligible employees and other eligible participants of

the Group during the year.

—E—+tF+tHA=+B=ZE
-+t HA-+HH

TREBAEEAEHERR AL BTG
SERERENFEALABREZ LB -

Cancelled/

Outstanding at Granted Exercised lapsed Outstanding at
1 January during during during 31 December
2018 the year the year the year 2018
RZF-NF RZB-N\F
-A-H R TZB=Z+-B
Date of grant BREAS KT FRRH FRTE BX VES: HRTHE
1 June 2017 —Z—tEXA—H 186,200,000 - - - 186,200,000
26 July 2017 Bl 3 e v = 186,200,000 - - - 186,200,000
372,400,000 - - - 372,400,000

Exercisable at the end REEBERATIE
of the reporting period 372,400,000

Weighted average METHTRE
exercise price HK$0.3897% 7T - - - HKS$0.3893 1T
Cancelled/

Outstanding at Granted Exercised lapsed Outstanding at
1 January during during during 31 December
2017 the year the year the year 2017
RZT—t% e o3
-A-H FR +ZA=+-18
Date of grant RitAH BRI FRE ERIR 3 VES HARITE
1 June 2017 Tt A—H . 186,200,000 - = 186,200,000
26 July 2017 —T—+HF+AZ+"H - 186,200,000 - - 186,200,000
- 372,400,000 - - 372,400,000

Exercisable at the end REEBERTIE
of the reporting period 372,400,000

Weighted average METHITEE

exercise price - HK$0.389% T - - HK$0.389% T

EFRERARQTF
2018 £
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No share options were exercised during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017. The share options outstanding at
31 December 2018 had a weighted average exercise price of
approximately HK$0.389 (2017: HK$0.389) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of approximately 3.49 years (2017:

4.49 years).

The weighted average fair value of the share options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2017 determined at the date of
grant using the Binomial Option Pricing Model was approximately

HK$0.029.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair values of

the share options.

29. B HESHE (2)

HE-_FT-N\FRZFT—+tF+=A
St+—RLEFE WETEBRE R =
E-NFTZAZ+—BERITEZEBR
B2 METHITEEL R38BT (ZF
—+F:03898 L) R T2 INEFHEL
FHINA3A49F (Z T —LF 1 449F) o

WRE-F—tF+-A=T—AILEFE
2 R E 2 T A A EEO A
0.020}87E - YRR It B H R — B S AR

EBRAETE -

THBRIANGHERBREZ AR EE

Date of grant

REBH

1 June 2017 26 July 2017

—E—tF —E—tF

A~HA—H tA=+7xH

Fair value at grant date RELBEZARER HK$0.038/ 7T  HK$0.0207% 7T

Grant date share price £ B HIRR(E HK$0.6007 T  HK$0.123% T

Exercise price TTEME HK$0.654 7T  HK$0.1238 7T

Option life 5 P 4F R 5 yearsfF 5 years4F

Expected volatility 8 HA R 8 95.81% 113.63%

Dividend yield g B = 0% 0%

Risk-free interest rate Nl 0.94% 1.20%
Expected volatility was determined based on historical volatility of TEERIE AR RN BERAF 2 IRERK
the share prices of the Company over the previous five years. The BET -FHEREz2ANEBEZEZHR

variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
share options are based on the Directors’ best estimate. Changes in
variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of

the options.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$nil (2017: approximately
HK$10,771,000) (Note 10) for the year ended 31 December 2018

in relation to the share options granted by the Company.
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30.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 30. KA R Z B AR T
COMPANY

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EF myY- -t
B =¥ THET FAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RBAR = 1 1
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b fE W SR IE 3,210 689
Amounts due from subsidiaries N ENEIE S 136,242 126,145
Cash and cash equivalents RehBaEEY 1,826 3,858
141,278 130,692
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables Hofh FE T SRR 1,418 1,297
Net current assets RBEERE 139,860 129,395
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERARBER 139,861 129,396
Non-current liability FREBEE
Bond payables FERHEFH 25 30,666 -
Net assets EERE 109,195 129,396
EQUITY s
Share capital BR s 27 18,627 18,627
Reserves G 31 90,568 110,769
Total equity fERBE 109,195 129,396
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on KESEN_T-NF=ZA=Z+/N\BH#E
28 March 2019. R RETIE -
On behalf of the Board REESE
Zhang Hengxin Jia Minghui
RTH EHE
Director Director
EZE EFE

N B
F 203
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31. RESERVES — COMPANY

3. fRE—ARQT

Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note a) (Note b)
R s E BEXERE RitEE ‘et
FERT FET FET FET
(Ffizta) (P &Eb)
As at 1 January 2017 e e = 402,912 - (123,664) 279,248
Loss and total comprehensive AEEERREEBALE
income for the year - - (179,250) (179,250)
Recognition of equity-settled PR mEREREE 2
share-based payment expenses A 2 R (Fi3E29)
(Note 29) - 10,771 - 10,771
As at 31 December 2017 and RZZE—+E+-_A=+—H
1 January 2018 kZE-NF—A—H 402,912 10,771 (302,914) 110,769
Loss and total comprehensive FEEEBEREZERALSE
income for the year - - (20,201) (20,201)
As at 31 December 2018 R-B-N\F
+=ZB=+—H 402,912 10,771 (323,115) 90,568

Notes:

a) The application of share premium account is governed by

Section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

b)  As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the capital reserve comprised

the fair value of unexercised share options granted to eligible

employees and other eligible participants of the Group under the

share option scheme of the Company recognised in accordance

with the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments

as further detailed in Note 4.15 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

Place of incorporation

Issued and paid-up
share capital

32 RMB AR 2R

ARAEEWBARZHEOT

Percentage of equity interest

attributable to the Company Principal activities

WEARARE MR E BRTRAZRA AREEERERD L TEXH
Directly Indirectly
BE B
ACE Engineering Limited Hong Kong 5,000,000 ordinary - 100% Engaged in building
shares totalling construction, building
HK$15,255,000 maintenance and
improvement works,
project management,
renovation and
decoration works in
Hong Kong
ZHIREBRAF 0 £ #£15,255,000 T 2 REBLEBFRE BT
& AR5,000,0008% BELRBEIR EHEE
B REREHIR
AMCO United Management Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totalling - 100%  Provision of management
Services Limited HK$1 services to the Group
EREBRBERAT Bk aRBTZERRIK mARBEREERRS

Best Reward Global Limited

EERRBRAA

Constant Gross Limited

FHARAT

Consun Wealth Management

Limited
EHEERERA

British Virgin Islands
("BVI")

HEBEAHEE ([HB
RRES])

BVI

EBRAFS

Hong Kong

BE

1 ordinary share of US$1
each

BREEIETZEBR
1%

1 ordinary share of US$1
each

BREEI1ETZ LBk
1R

100,000 ordinary shares
totally HK$100,000
£4£100,000% T2
&% 1%100,000/%

100% - Investment holding

BAER

100% - Investment holding

RAER

- 100%  Provision of management

services to the Group

RAAZERAEE RS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—\F+=-F=+—AILEE

32.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

Place of incorporation

Issued and paid-up
share capital

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company

32.AMBARI Z2#ERE (&)

Principal activities

WEAREE AL 3L B BRTRAZRE ARREERER DL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
BEE Gk
Dynamic Time Global Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
ERRREBR AT EEELES BREEIETEBR REZR
1
Energy Best Investments Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
Energy Best Investments Limited EERUES SREEIETZEAR REER
i3
Grace Champ Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totalling - 100% Engaged in the business of
HK$1 securities investment
REREBRAF BE ARIBTZERBRIK NEEFREEH
High Aim Corporation Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totalling - 100%  Provision of management
HK$1 services to the Group
YN BE ARIBT ERBRIK mAKERHEERRS
JS Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totalling - 100%  Provision of money lending
HK$1
BREMBERLA B AR 1IETEBRR RERE RS
Max Abundant Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
mRERRA EBRAES BREE1ZT2EBR REZR
1

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

32.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

Place of incorporation

Issued and paid-up
share capital

2. RMBLARIZER (&)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company

Principal activities

WEAREE 1R B 3 o B BRTRAZRE ARREERER DL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HE Gk

Titron Industries Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Sale of plastic moulding
totalling HK$1,000 products

EEMEBRAF Bk £ #£1,0008 T2 @K HEEBKRAER
1,000/%

Titron International Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Sale of medical devices
totalling HK$1,000 products

EREREKERAF BE A H1,0008 T2 AR HEBBRBER
1,000f%

Titron Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Sale of plastic moulding
totalling HK$1,000 products

BEARCEERAF B A #1,0008 T2 K HELBEAER
1,000%

Titron Precision Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
totalling HK$1,000

EEEEERAF BiE & 1,000 T2 Lk REZR
1,000%

Unicorn Elite International Limited ~ BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each

GEERERANR RERLES BREEIETZ ERK REZR
1R

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 ERIWNER =T - NF+_HA=1T—HF

December 2018 which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally

affected the Group's results for the year or formed a substantial

portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other

subsidiaries would,

in the opinion of the Directors,

particulars of excessive length.

result in

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the year.

FRRTEFEARERAFERELEK
AEEEEFEEABDZARAMER

Al-BERR EIHLEMME AR ZH
ERERREBNILE -

FR BENRS

R R BEITEAERE
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33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3BB.EAEBEALRS
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEBABZHM
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key EERHEHMFBEBRENERNFENRN 25 M
management during the year was as follows: N
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
—2-n% e
FHET FHET
Salaries and short-term employee benefits FeREEEERT 8,527 6,980
Post-employment benefits BB 2 AR A 120 116
8,647 7,096
34. DISCONTINUED OPERATION M BRIEREXER
The Group ceased the operation of the PR Business with effect from AEBEEFLESENBEER B —+
1 April 2017. PR —AREM -
The loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 from the HEZ_Z—tF+A=+—HLFE"
discontinued operation is analysed as follows: ERIEEEEB 2BEITIOT
HK$'000
FHT
Revenue WA -
Cost of services PR 75 B Z< -
Gross profit E5 -
Other income Efh U -
Administrative expenses THHAZ (71)
Loss before income tax B P15 456 Al S 18 (71)
Income tax credit FrisfiiE % -
Loss for the year from discontinued operation FACKRIEREER BB (71

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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34.DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) B BERLEREXK &)
The cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017 from the HE_Z—tF+_A=+—HLFE"

35.

discontinued operation is analysed as below: REERIEEEEB 2RBeRESNAOT

HK$'000
FET
Net cash outflows from operating activities KEFES 2R mEERE (443)
Total cash outflows BembezE (443)
The loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 from the HE-_Z—tF+_A=+—RHLEFE"
discontinued operation included the following: REERIEELEEB ZEREEBRBENAT
RIH:
HK$'000
FHET
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- - BERERENE 3
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING BJ.MEETHELEZEGEZHIER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRFNAEEREEFDEECBEBEY
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash PERGIFRCEFH - METHEL L
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for BEERSAEELARKRERREH/L
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the HEReRERTOEAREAFTHRENR
consolidated statement of cash flows from financing activities. EMaE-
Bond
payables
HK$'000
EES
FHT
Balance as at 1 January 2018 RZE-NE-—A—-—Bz#&# -
Financing cash flows MEREME 30,000
Other non-cash changes (Note) Hu3eBege (M) 666
Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+_A=+—B2&&% 30,666
Note: Other non-cash changes represented interest accruals. Wit B IEIR & B IR FE o
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36. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

The Group did not have any outstanding capital commitments

as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Operating leases — lessee

The Group had the following total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases at the end of

the reporting period:

36. & iE

(a)

(b)

BRAE

RZEBE-NER_ZT—+F+-A
—t+—B AEETETMERESR
B

REHE-AHEA

R E R AR BERE T A BEHL
BHEBU T RRSEBRE (A -

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

By Tt

FHERT FHET

Not later than one year —FR 1,710 2,802
Later than one year but not later —FBRERFA

than five years 468 1,330

2,178 4,132

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its rented premises. The leases are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years (2017:
one to two years). None of the leases include contingent

rentals.

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December

2018 and 2017.
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38.SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 3. RERBE D 2 BEEREY
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEEHE
The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value of TRINTHBEEREBE (EXAMTT47)
financial assets and liabilities as defined in Note 4.7: ZEREERAREE:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EB-N\F —FT—+tF
FHET FAET
Financial assets: MREE:
Financial assets at FVTPL BRBREAABEINRZUKEE
— Held-for-trading investments —RBEEERE 25,218 35,223
Financial assets at amortised cost LB AR M IEEE
— Trade and other receivables —E 5 REMEWKIEA 174,513 147,705
— Cash and cash equivalents -ReMkReEEY 18,300 26,276
218,031 209,204
Financial liabilities: BKaE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost ~ IRE# K AN BR 2 B IS & &
— Trade and other payables —B 5 Kk E M FER IR 66,050 61,675
- Bond payables —ERES 30,666 -
96,716 61,675
Fair value measurement AREEFE
Financial instruments not measured at fair value WHEBEAABETEZHHTA
Except for held-for-trading investments, all of the Group's financial BRIE/EEEREIN NEEMEUBKITA
instruments are not measured at their fair values. The Directors BHEEQA A BEHAZE EERAELAERR
consider that the carrying amounts of the Group's financial BB BT AZERMAERAR
instruments measured at amortised costs approximate to their fair R BERE-
values.
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3. REBBI D I EERE
BEEME #)

38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued) NREEFE®)

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
categorized into the three-level fair value hierarchy. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with

reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in

BEEMEEURAEETEZSY
BTA

TRV SHRE AL BEHE2H
BIEAAN BEE=EAAEEER A
R EEE R ERIES S HER T
ERZBAEZ TBRERES BN
R

the valuation technique as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets o ZE—EWAHRBRANEERHAES
for identical assets or liabilities that can access at the ZAERBEENBENERT S 2 K
measurement date; BIE

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included e ZEEWARBRAREAEXNBEAEEX

RZwABR 2B ABE(F - ER
BREZHBERIN) R

within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. s FoEBRABBREAENEBEZTA
B A BUE -
The financial asset measured at fair value in the consolidated RTZA=+—B2HE6 W BRARAIEZ
statement of financial position as at 31 December are grouped into AREEFEZHBEEZARBBEER
the fair value hierarchy as follows: SEEROT:
Level 1
b=
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
2% e
T TR
Held-for-trading investments HIEEREKRSE 25,218 35,223

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (continued)

Held-for-trading investments were investments in equity securities
listed in Hong Kong, for which the fair values were determined with

reference to quoted bid prices in an active market.

All of the Group’s fair value measurements were revalued at the

end of the reporting period.

There were no transfers of financial instruments between levels in

the hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also
exposed to equity price risk arising from movements in its own

equity share price and its investment in equity securities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in the
normal course of the Group's business are credit risk, liquidity risk,

interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’'s
headquarter, in close co-operation with the Board. The overall
objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the Group’s
short to medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to

financial markets.

38.

39.

REMBRRME

NEFZA=+—HIFE

RERE UM EKEERY
BKEEHE o

NREEFE®)
BREMEEURAALBETEZH
BIA(#)
BEEERETNRE B LR BRAZEY
BB HARBEDSBNERTE YR
BET-

AEBEMBRAAEBEFESNBREHRE
flre
BE_ZT-NFR-FE-—EtF+-H
=t -BIEFE - SEAMBITAHLE
LR

KR RER

AEEAZZERE RBES FEXRE
BTN EREGBEZFELS  NEE
NASEERG 2 REZEHFERBEAE
HZREMEL Z BERL -

*

RASEZ TREEHBETAMETAM
B FIRER  EEERRERER -

AEBEMEEESTUEE HAME
ERERTHE- ERMERRIERER
STREBEEREERSRT S Z AR
A REAEEZPEHRESRE -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

These risks are limited by the Group's financial management policies

and practices described below.

(i) Credit risk

—NF+=F=+—HALFE

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements
is the gross carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade and other receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit

risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Trade receivables
are due within 30 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 6 months past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers, except for new customers, where payment in

advance is normally required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group has a certain concentration of
credit risk as 52% (2017: 23%) and 89% (2017: 70%) of the
total gross trade receivables was due from the Group's largest

customer and the five largest customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables

are set out in Note 21.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily
realisable marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

(i)

(i)
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continuea)

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group's financial
liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on current rates at the reporting date) and the earliest

date the Group can be required to pay.

As at 31 December 2018

30. M KERER #)
(i) ABELRAR &)

TRETFRHERRAEE 2 W KA
BB TANIHA  DIREARKR
Reng (BREAGONRFEZ
MBSl RFEBF X AIRIE
RBEEABRZERMMEFHE) REK
AEBEERZKFAHAMSEL -

RZB-NFE+ZA=+—H

Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flows on demand 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EXOES: ) —FRA% —E#
SREE REeRBRAE RER BREER
FTET FTERT FTET FTET
Non-derivative financial FITERBEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 R H At FE S 5UR 66,050 66,050 66,050 -
Bond payables ANNEE 30,666 39,000 3,000 36,000
96,716 105,050 69,050 36,000
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=+—H
Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flows on demand 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRIRMER —FRK —Fig
REE ReneimE RER BRER
FET FET FET FTET
Non-derivative financial FITEMBERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables 5 REMENRE 61,675 61,675 61,675 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ_-F—/\FE+-F=+—ALFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk related to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market interest rate.

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk mainly
arises from bank deposits which earn interests at floating
rates. At 31 December 2018, the Group's bond payables
issued at fixed rate also exposes the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The Group did not have any interest-bearing
liabilities at 31 December 2017. The Group has not used any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
The Group has not formulated a policy to manage the interest
rate risk. The Directors considered that the Group's exposure

to interest rate risk is not significant.

(iv) Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong. The functional
currency of the Company and most of its subsidiaries is HK$.
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales that are denominated primarily in United States Dollars
("US$") for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
Both US$ and RMB are currencies other than the functional

currencies of the operations to which they related.

0. KERER &)
(i BERERAABENRER

B

MERBAMBIAEZ A EENE
B E R TSN R BB R E 2 E o

REEAZ 7 BRESRENERAREE
RERIRFBRIAE 2 RITIFH
WZE—-NE+-_A=+—8 K&
B2 B BEITHREE M X BEMNES
MEREBEBERA L EERERR-
R-_ZE—+F+-_A=1+—HB &&
B At R B E R EEIEE
BEMITETIAGOE AR -
NS E A4 5 E B IR R E b 2 BR -
EERRAEEAZ 2 ERRIL T
Ep N

(iv) &%= s

REFBXTZREBLE -ARAIRE
REHMBRR e EE RHBETTo
REBEZE_Z-N\ER_ZF—+F+=
AR=+—HIHE AEEEEE
SEERBRREZNUET ([ZET])
AEZHE - ETRARKEY RIEHE
EB 2 B8N EE -

uss$ RMB

EY AR®
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—2-N\F —EEF —2-N\F —E R
FHERT FHET FHERT FHET
Trade and other receivables & 5 & ot e U 708 626 439 = -
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEED 8,566 5,375 375 486
Trade and other payables B 5 & H At FE A 5UE (800) (475) (144) 21)
Overall net exposure BEFERRFE 8,392 5,339 231 465
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(iv) Currency risk (continued)

(v)

As HK$ is pegged to the US$, the Group does not have
material exchange rate risk on such currency. As at 31
December 2018 and 2017, the net exposure of assets
and liabilities to RMB is considered as minimal due to the
insignificance in amount. Accordingly, the Directors consider

that no sensitivity analysis is required.

Price risk

The Group’s held-for-trading investments are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore,
the Group is exposed to equity security price risk. The
Directors manage this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of

investments with different risk profiles.

The Group's loss after tax for the year would decrease/
increase as a result of gains/losses on change in fair value of

held-for-trading investments recognised in profit or loss.

At 31 December 2018, if the share prices of the investments
increase/decrease by 5%, the Group’s loss after tax for the
year would have been approximately HK$1,261,000 (2017:
HK$1,761,000) lower/higher, arising as a result of the fair

value gain/loss of the investments.

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The

Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard

the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can

continue to provide returns for Shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders.
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40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher Shareholders’
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes

in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net

debts as total interest-bearing liabilities comprising bond payables

REMBRRME

NEFZA=+—HIFE

40. EXEBREE (2)

REEESNE RS R EREEEARRE
HRAERSEEKFAETRIESBRR
Ol EERFIRME SN R 2 Em
REZHER FE IREERR 2 EE
HERRBETHE

AEBENFEBHHERERN L RER
HEXREB - BT S AEREREFER
REEMESREZBNESF 2 EFER

as disclosed in Note 25, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted BERAEERRCFEY - KHBERBDE
capital comprises all components of share capital and reserves as P ET270A R fir & 1 2 B B R FT 0 58 2 R AR
disclosed in Note 27 and the consolidated statement of changes in KFEEZFBEE D -
equity respectively.
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
2% -tk
FHERT FHET
Bond payables EEH 30,666 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BRERBASEEY (18,300) (26,276)
Net debt/(cash balance) BE® (REHE) 12,366 (26,276)
Adjusted capital BREEX 135,835 165,683
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio FEEHABREARLER Not applicable
9% i A

41.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant event after the end of the reporting period

of the Group.

42. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

the Board of Directors on 28 March 2019.

41. SREHHEREE
AEERBE R EEASE-

42 #EE B | R

AYBHREER_ZT—NF=A=+N\A8

EEEaftERRENE-
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Financial Summary

MBHRE

1. RESULTS 1. ¥4&

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t+-BLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\E§ —T—+F —E-RF —Z-hfF —E-NF
FHT T FHET S FHT
Revenue from continuing REREEEER L
operations WA 112,279 87,932 98,400 71,845 76,470
Loss before income tax from RERBELEER
continuing operations ZBIERAER (26,773) (147,906) (18,370) (16,867) (48,287)
Income tax credit/(expenses) REREEEER L
from continuing operations FEHER,/ (AX) 21 47 426 (235) -
Loss for the year from REBREZEB
discontinued operations FEEE - () (465) (1,504) -
Loss for the year attributable A AREE AEMHL
to owners of the Company FEEE (26,752) (147,930) (18,409) (18,606) (48,287)
2. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2.EEREE
At 31 December
R+=A=+-1H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F “B-tF “ERF “2-n% —E-mE
FHR T FHET S FHT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment  #1%¥ - BiE k& 919 2,087 2,652 65,703 3,169
Goodwill e 6,379 10,196 10,196 957 -
Intangible assets EREE 5,016 5,056 5,297 2,584 -
Available-for-sale financial asset Al it HEB & &E - - 15,300 - -
Other assets HEE 221,779 210,872 300,559 205,322 78,774
Total assets BEE 234,093 228,211 334,004 274,566 81,943
Liabilities &
Current liabilities MEBAGE 66,765 61,694 30,288 30,442 33,757
Non-current liabilities ErRBaE 31,493 834 874 354 -
Total liabilities BaE 98,258 62,528 31,162 30,796 33,757
Equity attributable to LG E PN
owners of the Company 135,835 165,683 302,842 243,770 48,186
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